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NOTICE 
To 
The Members, 
BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 47th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at its 
Registered Office, on Friday, the 27th September, 2019, at 11.00 A.M. to transact the following 
business: 

Ordinary Business: 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements including audited consolidated 
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, together 
with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

2. To reappoint Shri Nirmal Murarka (DIN:00192744) as Director, who retires by rotation. 

Special Business - Special Resolutions: 

3. To approve re-appointment of Shri Ramkrishana Shriya (DIN:00027388),  as an 
Independent Director of the Company. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Rules framed thereunder and the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), the approval of the Members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Shri Ramkrishna Shriya 
(DIN:00027388) as an Independent Director of the Company, whose term shall not be 
subject to retirement by rotation, to hold office for a second term of 5 (Five) consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company with effect from 30th September, 2019. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do 
and perform all such acts, deeds, matters or things as may be considered necessary, 
appropriate, expedient or desirable to give effect to above resolution.” 

4. To approve re-appointment of Smt. Anita Bhartiya (DIN:01579145), as an Independent 
Director of the Company. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Rules framed thereunder and the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), the approval of the Members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Smt. Anita Bhartiya 
(DIN:01579145), as an Independent Director of the Company, whose term shall not be 
subject to retirement by rotation, to hold office for a second term of 5 (Five) consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company with effect from 30th September, 2019.  

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do 
and perform all such acts, deeds, matters or things as may be considered necessary, 
appropriate, expedient or desirable to give effect to above resolution.” 

 

Regd. Office 

Plot No.11, Cama Industrial Estate, 
Goregaon (E), Mumbai – 400 063 

Date: 13th August, 2019. 

By order of the Board 
For BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 

 
Sd/- 

NIRMAL MURARKA  
DIRECTOR  

DIN: 00192744 

 



NOTES: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THIS MEETING WILL BE 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. A 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members 
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or 
shareholder. 

2. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 
closed from Friday, the 20th September, 2019 to Friday, the 27th September, 2019, 
both days inclusive.   

3. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open 
for inspection by the members at the Registered office of the Company on all working 
days, during 4.00 P.M. to 6 P.M. up to the date of the Meeting. 

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in demat form are, therefore, requested to submit PAN details to the 
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to Registrar M/s. Bigshare 
Services Private Limited / Company. 

5. Green Initiative : 

Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
relevant Rules made thereunder, companies can serve Annual Reports and other 
communications through electronic mode to those Members who have registered 
their email address either with the Company or with the Depository Participant(s). 
Members who have not registered their email address with the Company can now 
register the same to the Company by sending email at baj_igrd@remigroup.com or 
to M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited or with the concerned depositories. 

YOUR INITIATIVE WILL SAVE FOREST WEALTH OF OUR COUNTRY. 

6. Pursuant to provision of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to 
time and Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to 
provide its members facility to exercise their rights to vote on the resolution proposed to 
be considered at the 47th Annual General Meeting by the electronic means/ remote e-
voting) and/or voting by ballot paper at the AGM. The facility of casting the votes by the 
members using an electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the 
AGM (“remote   e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL). The notice is available on website of the Company. The e-voting facility is 
available at the link https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

7. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the 
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be 
able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. A member may participate 
in the AGM even after exercising his/her right to vote through remote e-voting but shall 
not be allowed to vote again at the AGM. Incase Members cast their vote through both 
the modes, voting done by e-voting shall prevail and votes cast through Ballot form  shall 
be treated as invalid. 

8. The remote e-voting period shall commence at 9.00 a.m. on 23rd September, 2019 and 
will end at 5 p.m. on 26th September, 2019. The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again. 



9. The details procedure for remote e-voting is set out below: 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which 
are mentioned below: 

 Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

 Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below: 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under „Shareholders‟ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed 
to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

5. Your password details are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 
password to login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the „initial password‟ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your „initial password‟, you need to enter the „initial password‟ and the 
system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your „initial password‟? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 
your „initial password‟ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 
open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits 
of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 
form. The .pdf file contains your „User ID‟ and your „initial password‟.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, your „initial password‟ is communicated 
to you on your postal address 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical 
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 
send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 
the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 Details on Step 2 is given below: 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. 
Click on e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles. 

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” 
in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote. 

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and 
also “Confirm” when prompted. 

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed 

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page. 

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to bajscrutinizer@gmail.com with 
a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:scrutinizer@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the 
password 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

10. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. on 20th September, 2019 
Members are eligible to cast vote electronically only if they are holding shares either in 
physical form or demat form  as on that date. 

11. Any persons who have acquired shares after the dispatch of the Notice and holding 
shares as on cut–off date i.e. on 20th September, 2019, may obtain the user ID and 
Password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or to RTA. However, if you are 
already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID 
and password for casting your vote. If you have forgotten your password, you can reset 
your password by using “Forgot User Details/ Password” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no. 1800-222-990. 

12. Shareholders who forgot the User Details/Password can use “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. In case Shareholders are holding shares in demat mode, 
USER-ID is the combination of (DPID+ClientID). In case Shareholders are holding shares 
in physical mode, USER-ID is the combination of (Even No.+Folio No.). 

13. The Company has appointed Shri Vishal Mehra, Practicing Company Secretary, V M 
Mehra & Associates, to act as the Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire ballot voting /e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.   

14. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which 
voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot 
Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes 
by availing the remote e-voting facility. 

15. The scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, first count the 
votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in 
the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the company and make, 
not later than two days of conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer‟s report of 
the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by 
him in writing who shall countersign the same. 

16. The results declared along with the consolidated Scrutinizer‟s Report shall be placed on 
the Company‟s website i.e. www.remigroup.com and on the website of NSDL after the 
result is declared by the chairman or a person authorized by him. The result shall also be 
forwarded to The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.  

17. An Explanatory Statement relating to the item of special business set out in items No. 3 
and 4 accompanies.  

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 – 
ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

Item No. 3 and 4 

At the 42nd AGM of the Company held on 30th September, 2014, the Members had approved the 
appointment of Shri Ramkrishana Shriya (DIN:00027388) and  Smt. Anita Bhartiya 
(DIN:01579145) for a term of five years with effect from 30th September, 2014. In accordance with 
Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term upto five years on 
the Board and shall be eligible for reappointment on passing a Special Resolution Section 149(11) 
of the Act provides that an Independent Director may hold office for two consecutive terms of five 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


years each. Taking into consideration their skills, experience, knowledge and their valuable 
contribution to the Company and based on their performance evaluation, it is desirable to continue 
to avail their services and reappoint them for a second term of five years to hold office with effect 
from 30th September, 2019. 

Accordingly, the Board of Directors have at the Meeting held on 13th August, 2019, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration Committee,  recommended the 
reappointment Shri Ramkrishana Shriya (DIN:00027388) and Smt. Anita Bhartiya (DIN:01579145) 
as Independent Director of the Company for second term, as aforesaid. Independent Directors, are 
not liable to retire by rotation. They also  have given declaration that they are not disqualified from 
being reappointed as Independent Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and have given their 
consent to act as an Independent Directors. The Company has also received declaration from 
them that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Act and the Listing 
Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that they 
are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that 
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Shri Ramkrishana Shriya 
(DIN:00027388) and Smt. Anita Bhartiya (DIN:01579145) have also given declaration that they are 
not debarred from holding office of director by virtue of any order passed by Securities and 
Exchange Board of India or any other such authority. The terms and conditions of reappointment 
of independent Directors shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of 
the Company during normal business hours on any working day of the Company and will also be 
kept open at the venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM.  

Brief profile of Shri Ramkrishana Shriya (DIN:00027388) and Smt. Anita Bhartiya (DIN:01579145) 
are also given in this Notice. Shri Ramkrishana Shriya (DIN:00027388) and Smt. Anita Bhartiya 
(DIN:01579145) and their relatives are interested in the Resolutions set out at Item Nos. 3 and 4 
respectively of the Notice with regard to their individual appointments. In the opinion of the Board, 
the Independent Directors fulfills the conditions specified in these regulations and are independent 
of Management. 

 Shri Ramkrishna Shriya (DIN:00027388): 

Shri Ramkrishana Shriya (85) has vast experience of more than 60 years of rich experience 
in Industry and Trade. The Company will benefit from his rich experience. He is on the Board 
of Remi Process Plant and Machinery Ltd. and Bhuruka Gases Investments India Private 
Limited. He does not hold any shares in the Company. He is chairman of Audit Committee of 
the Company and Remi Process Plant and Machinery Ltd. He is member of Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee of the Company and Remi Process Plant and Machinery Ltd. He 
has attended 5 (Five) Board Meetings during the year. 

 Smt. Anita Bhartiya (DIN:01579145) 

Smt. Anita Bhartiya (52) is a Commerce graduate with first class from Mumbai University. She 
has experience in the field of Manufacturing, Production, Inventory Management, 
Merchandising, Brand Development etc.  She does not hold any shares in the Company. She 
is on the Board of Remi Edelstahl Tubulars Limited, Remi Process Plant and Machinery 
Limited, Remi Securities Limited, K K Fincorp Limited, Bhartiya Agro Mercantile Ltd. and 
Chandulal Remeshwardas Imports Ltd. She is member of Audit Committee of Bajrang 
Finance Limited, Remi Securities Limited and K K Fincorp Limited. She has attended 5 (Five) 
Board Meetings during the year. 

The Board recommends passing of special resolutions as set out in item nos. 3 and 4 of the 
Notice. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective 
relatives of the Company are concerned or interested in the said resolutions except themselves. 

Your Directors commend the resolutions for your approval. 

********* 



DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

To  
The Members, 
BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 

The Directors are pleased to present herewith the audited accounts of the Company for its 
financial year ended 31st March, 2019. 

The financial results are: 
(` In Lakhs) 

Financial Results 2018 – 19 2017 – 18 

Gross Income  70.01  43.28 

Net Profit /(Loss)  33.87  (10.57) 

other comprehensive income  12.54  8.70 

Net Profit (including other comprehensive income)  46.41  (1.87) 

Balance brought forward  419.74  421.61 

  466.15  419.74 

Transfer to Special Reserve under 45 IC of the RBI Act, 
1934. 

 10.00  -- 

Net surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss  456.15  419.74 

  466.15  419.74 

OPERATIONS : 

The Company achieved a turnover of Rs.70.01 lakhs during the year as against Rs.43.28 lakhs in 
previous year. The working of the Company has improved and resulted into net profit of Rs.33.87 
Lakhs as compared to loss of Rs.10.57 lakhs during previous year. 

During the year, the Company transferred a sum of Rs.10.00 lakhs to the Special Reserve under 
45 IC of the RBI Act, 1934. There are no changes in the share capital during the year. 

There are no Companies which have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries or Joint Ventures. 

AOC-1-Part B is enclosed as part of Balance sheet to highlight the Performance of Associate 
Companies. 

DIRECTORS: 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as 
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act.  

BRIEF DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT: 

Shri Nirmal Murarka (DIN:00192744) retires by rotation and is to be re-appointed. 

Shri Nirmal Murarka (51), a graduate having vast experience in the field of finance and 
administration. He has work experience of more than 20 years in this field. His involvement with 
the Company is beneficial to the Company and stakeholders. He was first appointed on the Board 
of Directors w.e.f.15/02/2010. He is the Whole-Time Director of Remi Fans Ltd. He is chairman of 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company. He attended 5 (Five) Board Meetings 
during the Year 2018-19. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

The Board has recommended reappointment of Shri Ramkrishna Shriya and Smt. Anita 
Bhartiya as Independent Directors for second term of five years subject to approval by members 
by way of special resolutions and brief profile of Independent Directors as stated in the Notice of 
ensuing AGM. 



KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL(KMP) 

During the year Mr. Nirmal Tiwari was appointed as company secretary of the Company with effect 
from 29th March, 2019. 

BOARD MEETINGS: 

During the year, attended 5 (Five) Board meetings were held, with gap between Meetings not 
exceeding the period prescribed under the Act. 

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, formulated 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and also a 
policy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management.  

The Executive Directors and other whole-time directors are paid remuneration by way of salary, 
perquisites, incentives and allowances, as recommended by the Committee and the Board of 
Directors and approved by the Members of the Company from time to time. Non-Executive 
Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors.  

The Board of Directors are collectively responsible for selection of a member on the Board. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company follows defined criteria for identifying, 
screening, recruiting and recommending candidates for election as a Director on the Board. The 
criteria for appointment to the Board include: 

 composition of the Board, which is commensurate with the size of the Company, its 
portfolio, geographical spread and its status as a listed Company;  

 desired age and diversity on the Board; 

  size of the Board with optimal balance of skills and experience and balance of Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors consistent with the requirements of law;  

 professional qualifications, expertise and experience in specific area of business; balance 
of skills and expertise in view of the objectives and activities of the Company;  

 avoidance of any present or potential conflict of interest; 

  availability of time and other commitments for proper performance of duties; 

 personal characteristics being in line with the Company’s values, such as integrity, 
honesty, transparency, pioneering mindset. 

AUDITORS: 

Mr. Yatin Kumar Shah (Membership No.159796) Chartered Accountant was appointed as the 
statutory auditor of the Company for a term of consecutive five years i.e. from the conclusion of the 
45th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 50th Annual General Meeting by the 
shareholders of the Company. He has confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as 
auditor of the Company. 

The statutory audit report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by statutory auditors. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

Shri Vishal Mehra, Practicing Company Secretary, V M Mehra & Associates, was appointed to 
conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20, as required under 
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. The secretarial audit report for FY 
2018-19 forms part of the Annual Report as “Annexure - A” to the Board's report. There is no 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark in the report. 

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments, if any covered under the provisions of Section 186 
of the Act are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

Pursuant to provisions of The Companies Act, 2013, all related party transactions that were 
entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary 
course of business. There were no material related party transactions entered by the Company 
during the year and thus disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. Pursuant to Schedule V of the 
SEBI ((Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, following are the 
transaction with any person or promoter/ promoters group holding 10% or more shareholding. 

Name of Related Party Loan Given Interest Received 

Remi Securities Ltd. 10.00 Lakhs 0.47 Lakh 

None of the Non-Executive Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Company other than payment of sitting fees to them. 

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 21 to the notes to accounts which sets out 
related party disclosures. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo are as follows: 

A) Conservation of energy:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Company is not a 
manufacturing company; 

hence the particulars relating 
to conservation of energy and 
technology absorption are not 

applicable. 

All efforts are being made to conserve energy.   

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of 
energy; 

: 

ii. the steps taken by the company for utilising 
alternate sources of energy; 

: 

iii. the capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments; 

: 

(B) Technology absorption:  

i. the efforts made towards technology absorption; : 

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution; 

: 

iii. in case of imported technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year) 

 

(a) the details of technology imported; : 

(b) the year of import; : 

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; : 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption 
has not taken place, and the reasons 
thereof; and 

: 

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development  

: 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

During the year under review, there were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee comprises of Shri Ramkrishna Shriya, Shri Mahabir Prasad Sharma and 
Smt. Anita Bhartiya. 



RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Company has laid down a risk management policy identifying the core areas of risk including 
Business Risk and Interest Rates risk. The senior management team reviews and manages the 
risks in a systematic manner, including regular monitoring of exposures, proper advice from 
market experts. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS, BOARD, COMMITTEES 
AND DIRECTORS: 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of 
board processes, information and functioning, etc. The performance of the committees was 
evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of the 
criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the 
individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to 
the Board and committee meetings like meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in 
meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. 

In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, 
performance of the board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into 
account the views of non-executive directors. 

DEPOSITS: 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling within the purview of Section 
73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM: 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. The internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.  

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS: 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future. 

VIGIL MECHANISM: 

The Company has set up vigil mechanism viz. Whistle Blower Policy to enable the employees and 
Directors to report genuine concerns and irregularities, if any in the Company, noticed by them. 
The same is posted on the website of the Company.   

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN; 

The extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 is placed on the Company’s website at 
www.remigroup.com. 

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES; 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5(1) and 5 (2) of The Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of 
the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Report and 
Accounts are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on 
employees' particulars which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of 
the Company during business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

No employee of the Company was in receipt of remuneration equal to or exceeding the prescribed 
limits pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT: 

Kindly note that the pursuant to Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the compliance with the corporate governance provisions as 
specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the Company as paid up equity 
share capital the Company does not exceed Rupees Ten Crores and net worth does not exceed 
Rupees Twenty Five Crores as on the Financial year ended 31st March, 2019. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
obtained by them, your Directors confirm that: 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019, the applicable 
Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures, if any; 

b. the Directors have selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended 31st March 2019 
and of the profit of the Company for that period; 

c. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts/ financial statements on a going concern 
basis; 

e. that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively ; and 

f. that the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

APPRECIATION: 

Your Directors appreciate the faith you have reposed in the Company and are confident that the 
Company can depend upon your continued support in its endeavour to grow. 
 

Registered Office: 

Plot No.11, Cama Industrial Estate,  
Goregaon (East), Mumbai-400 063 

Dated: 13th August, 2019             

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

 

NIRMAL MURARKA 
CHAIRMAN 

(DIN: 00192744) 

********* 



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:- 

a) Industry structure and developments  

During the year under review some major financial companies defaulted thereby affecting 
liquidity in the markets. NBFCs too witnessed decline in disbursements and margin contraction 
due to rising cost of funds. FY 2018-19 witnessed a surge in indices led by key constituents of 
the Nifty although the broader market including the midcap segment failed to show the kind of 
buoyancy displayed by the index. Bank Credit grew 13% while Deposits grew 10%. Mid 2018 
witnessed considerable weakness in inflows into debt mutual funds. The year also saw 
considerable stress in certain Housing Finance Companies and other reputed corporate 
groups.  

b) Opportunities and Threats  

Your Company being an investment Company seeks opportunities in the capital market. The 
volatility in stock indices in the financial year under report represents both an opportunity and 
challenge for the Company. Capital market activities in which most of our activities depend on 
is also influenced by global events happening in the US, UK & China and hence there is an 
amount of uncertainty in the near term outlook of the market. With the stability of Government 
at Centre, the capital market prospect would significantly improve.  

c) Segment-wise Performance  

The Company is engaged in investment activities and other financial services during the year 
under review, hence the requirement of segment-wise reporting is considered irrelevant.  

d) Outlook 

We continue to see a significant opportunity in the market and will use periods of interim 
weakness as investment opportunities for long term.  

e) Risks and Concerns  

The performance of the Company is dependent on the capital markets for its returns. Even 
though it is envisaged that Indian stock market will continue to do well, global concerns can 
result in sharp corrections.  

f) Internal Control Systems and their adequacy: 

The Company has adequate internal control systems in technical and financial fields. 

g) Financial Performance: 

The Financial Performance of the Company has improved during the year. 

h) Human Resources/ Industrial Relations: 

The Company has maintained good industrial relations and has maintained harmonious 
relations with the employees. 

i) Cautionary Statement: 

Statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations may be “forward looking statements” within the 
meaning of applicable securities laws or regulations. These statements are based on certain 
assumptions and expectations of future events. Actual results could differ materially from those 
expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s 
operations include economic conditions affecting global and domestic demand and supply, 
finished goods prices in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company operates, 
raw-materials cost and availability, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic 
developments within or outside India and other factors such as litigation and industrial 
relations. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revive any 
forward looking statements on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or 
events. 



 

j) Details of significant changes in Key Financial Ratios: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 Remarks 

1) Interest Coverage 
Ratio 

0.11 Negative The Interest coverage ratio has 
improved in FY’19 compare to 
negative ratio in previous year 
due to improvement in earnings 
compared to loss in previous 
year. 

2) Operating Profit 
Margin 

67.27 (20.59) The operating profit margin, net 
profit margin and return on net 
worth have improved during 
FY’19 compare to negative 
returns during previous year due 
to gain of Rs.30.10 lakhs 
compared to loss of  Rs.30.89 
lakhs in the previous year. 

3) Net Profit Margin 48.46 (24.56) 

4) Return on Net 
Worth 

2.32 (0.75) 

There was no significant change in Debtors Turnover Ratio and Current Ratio. 



 

Annexure-A 
Form No. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report 
(For the Financial year ended 31st March, 2019) 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members  
BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 
L65990MH1971PLC015344 
Plot No.11, Cama Industrial Estate,  
Goregaon (East), Mumbai -4000063 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED (hereinafter called the 
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2019, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED (“The Company”) for the Financial Year ended 
on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 („SCRA‟) and the Rules made 
thereunder;  

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made  
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings;  

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 („SEBI Act‟) to the extent applicable to the Company :- 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers)Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (not applicable to the Company during audit 
period); 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of  India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (not applicable to the 
Company during audit period); 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents)Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; (not applicable to the Company during audit period;  
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f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; (not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)  
Regulations, 2009; (not applicable to the Company during audit period) and  

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
1998; (not applicable to the Company during audit period). 

i) The examination of compliance of the provisions of other special applicable laws was 
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that: 

i. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There are no 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review. 

ii. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

iii. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

iv. The Company appointed Shri Nirmal Tiwari, Company Secretary as Compliance Officer 
with effect from 29th March, 2019. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period, there are no specific events / actions having a major 
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
standards, etc., referred to above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place : Mumbai 
Date   : 9th August, 2019 

V M MEHRA & ASSOCIATES 

Sd/- 

Vishal Mehra 
Company Secretary in  

Whole-Time Practice  
M. No.A41751 
C.P. No.15526 

 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS‟ REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
I have audited the financial statements of BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the statement of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (Collectively 
referred to as „standalone financial statements‟). 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to 
me, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial 
position) of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its profit (financial performance 
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date :- 
 

a. In the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st 
March  2019, 

 
b. In the case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit (financial performance 

including other comprehensive income), changes in equity; and 
 

c. In the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flow statement for the year ended 
on that date. 

 
Basis for Opinion  

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. My responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

there under, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. I believe that the audit evidence I have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, Ire of most 
significance. in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters Ire 
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
my opinion thereon, I have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in 
„my report. 

 

 

 



Other Information 
The Company‟s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and my auditor's report thereon. 
 
My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, than I have required to report that fact. I 
have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company‟s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the. Indian Accounting Standards („Ind AS‟) specified under section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that Ire operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company‟s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related. 
to going concern and meing the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

 
Boards of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company‟s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor‟s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of meers taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 



As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing („SAs‟), I exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due. to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collmeion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3} of the Act, I 
am also responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies meed and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management‟s mee of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company‟s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention in my auditor‟s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor‟s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

• Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements maybe influenced. I 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluated the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

 
• I communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 
 

• I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
• From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine 

those matters that Ire of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe 
these matters in my auditor‟s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstance, I determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 



 
 
 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor‟s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, I 
give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that: 
 

a. I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of my knowledge and belief Ire necessary for the purposes of my audit. 

 
b. In my opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

company so far as it appears from my examination of those books; 
 
c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes 

in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in-agreement 

with the books of accounts; 
 
d. In my opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 

Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with       
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard), Rules 2016. 

 
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 

March 2019, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31 March 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164(2) of the Act ; 

 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

Reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
Refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

 
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor‟s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations 
given to me : 

 

i. The Company did not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position. 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative 

contract; as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable 
losses thereon does not arise. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

iii. There has not been any occasion in case of the Company during the year 
under report to transfer any sums to the investor education and protection 
fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise. 

 

 
 For YATIN KUMAR SHAH, 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
PLACE :  MUMBAI 
DATED : 29TH MAY, 2019   

 
 

Sd/- 
 
 

(YATIN KUMAR SHAH) 
PROPRITOR 

Membership Number 159796 
 



ANNEXURE- “A” TO THE AUDITORS‟ REPORT 
 
 

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under „Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements‟ section of my report of even date] 

 
 (i)  The Company does not own any fixed assets. 

  

(ii)  The Company is a NBFC, primarily engaged in nonbanking financial 

services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. 

 
(iii)  The Company has granted loans to corporates listed in the register 

maintained u/s 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 (a) In my opinion , the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on 

which loan had been granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register 

maintained u/s 189 of the act Ire not , prima facie, prejudicial to the 

interest of the Company.  

 (b) In the case of loans granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register 

maintained u/s 189 of the Act, the borrower have been regular in the 

payment of the principal and interest as stipulated. 

 (c) There are no overdue amount in respect of the loan granted to a body 

corporate listed in register maintained u/s 189 of the Act. 

   

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to me, the Company has 

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security. 

 
(v) In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, 

the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the 

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under are not attracted. 

 

 (vi) The Company engaged in the business of NBFC and therefore the provisions 

relating to maintenance of cost records are not applicable. 

 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to me, the 

Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities 

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education 

Protection Fund, Employees‟ State Insurance, Income tax, G S T, Cess 

and other statutory dues as applicable to it with appropriate authorities 

and there were no undisputed arrears as at 31st March, 2019 for a period 

of more than six months from the date they become payable. 
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 (b) According to the information and explanations given to me, there were no 

disputed statutory dues of Income tax, G S T and Cess as at 31st March, 

2019. 

   

(viii) In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, 

the Company has neither availed any loans from financial institutions, banks, 

Government nor issued any debentures. 

 

(ix) In my opinion and according to the information and explanation given to me, 
the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year under 
review. 
 

(x) To the best of my knowledge and belief and according to the information and 

explanations given to me, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or 

reported during the course of my audit. 

 

(xi) In my opinion and according to information and explanations given to me, the 

Company paid or provided managerial remuneration with requisite approvals 

mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

(xii) In my opinion and according to information and explanation given to me, the 
Company is not Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(XII) of the order is 
not applicable. 

  
(xiii) In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, 

all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 

and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where ever applicable and the details have 

been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable 

accounting standards. 

  
(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 

shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Contd……..3 
 
 
 



 

 

(xv) 

: 3 : 

 

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, 

the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 

persons connected with then. 

 
(xvi) The Company has been registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. 

 

 

 
 

For YATIN KUMAR SHAH, 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLACE  :  MUMBAI 
DATED :  29TH MAY, 2019 

 
 

Sd/- 
 
 

(YATIN KUMAR SHAH) 
PROPRITOR 

Membership Number 159796 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ANNEXURE - “B” TO THE AUDITORS‟ REPORT 
  

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
  
I have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bajrang Finance 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with my audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
  

Management‟s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

  
The Company‟s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India („ICAI‟). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that Ire operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company‟s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
  

Auditors‟ Responsibility 
  
My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 
  
My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. My 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor‟s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
  
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my audit opinion on the Company‟s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
 

Contd………2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



:   2   : 
  

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

  
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 
  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
  
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
  

Opinion 
  
In my opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting Ire operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
 
  For YATIN KUMAR SHAH, 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT, 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
PLACE :  MUMBAI 
DATED :  29TH MAY, 2019 

 
 

Sd/- 
 
 

(YATIN KUMAR SHAH) 
PROPRITOR 

Membership Number 159796 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Particulars  As at   As at   As at  

 31st March 2019  31st March 2018  1st April 2017 

Note No Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

I. ASSETS

  Financial Assets

  Cash and Cash equivalents 3 113,099                             128,429                         129,989                          

  Bank Balance other than (a) above 4 4,360,074                          636,466                         874,822                          

  Receivables 5 3,243,640                          2,129,955                     2,074,146                       

  Loans 6 30,000,000                       30,967,561                   3,967,330                       

  Other Financial Assets 7 5,283,119                          4,733,129                     5,088,807                       

42,999,932                       38,595,540                   12,135,094                     

  Non-Financial Assets

  Deferred tax Assets ( Net ) 8,426,879                          9,394,733                     8,912,853                       

  Other Non-Currents Investments 8 94,799,817                       93,613,770                   120,886,094                   

  Long Term Loans & Advances 9 68,100                               68,100                           68,100                             

103,294,796                     103,076,603                 129,867,047                   

Total 146,294,728                     141,672,143                 142,002,141                  

II. LIABLITIES AND EQUITY

     LIABLITIES 

  Financial Liabilities

  Payable 10 59,370                               62,573                           60,903                             

  Other Financial Liabilities 11 151,506                             209,364                         456,731                          

210,876                             271,937                         517,634                          

  Non Financial Liabilities

  Provisions 12 228,758                             185,658                         82,991                             

-                                      -                                  -                                   

228,758                             185,658                         82,991                             

(3) EQUITY

  Equity Share Capital 13 18,000,000                       18,000,000                   18,000,000                     

  Other Equity 14 127,855,094                     123,214,548                 123,401,516                   

145,855,094                     141,214,548                 141,401,516                   

Total 146,294,728                     141,672,143                 142,002,141                  -                                      -                                  -                                   

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  AND NOTE TO ACCOUNTS 1 - 22

AS PER MY REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR YATIN KUMAR SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

                  Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

YATIN KUMAR SHAH M P SHARMA NIRMAL MURARKA

 PROPRIETOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

( Membership No.159796 ) DIN: 00175393 DIN:00192744

PLACE  :  MUMBAI

DATED  :   29TH MAY, 2019

Sd/-

NIRMAL TIWARI

COMPANY SECRETARY

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2019



For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31st March 2019 31st March 2018

Particulars Note No Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

I. Revenue from Operations

   Interest Income                          3,846,141                      1,212,419 

  Dividend Income                              119,104                            92,466 

  Capital Gain  on Sale of Investments                                12,433                      2,993,989 

  Future & Option Segments Gain                          3,009,908                                     -   

Total from Revenue from Operations                          6,987,586                      4,298,874 

II. Other Income

  Interest from Income Tax Refund                                         -                              28,959 

  Other Income                                13,354                                     -   

                               13,354                            28,959 

II. Total Revenue (I +II)                          7,000,940                      4,327,833 

III. Expenses:

  Finance Cost                                  4,334                          664,189 

  Employee Benefits Expenses 15                          1,337,075                      1,294,169 

  Other Expenses 16                          1,029,895                      3,918,428 

Total Expenses                          2,371,304                      5,876,786 

IV. Profit before Tax                          4,629,636                     (1,548,953)

V. Tax Expense:

         (1) Current Tax                              880,000                                     -   

                Less : MAT credit entitlement                              576,230                                     -   

                             303,770                                     -   

          (2) Earlier year tax adjustment                                28,920                            10,110 

         (3) Deferred Tax / ( Credit )                              967,854                        (481,880)

VI. Profit for the Period from continuing Operations                          3,386,932                     (1,056,963)

VII. Profit for the Period from discontinuing Operations                                         -                                       -   

VIII. Tax Expenses of discontinued Operations                                         -                                       -   

IX. Profit for the Period from discontinuing Operations ( After Tax )                                         -                                       -   

X. Profit for the Period from discontinuing Operations ( After Tax )                                         -                                       -   

XI. Profit for the Period                          3,386,932                     (1,056,963)

XII. Other Comprehensive Income- net of tax                          1,253,614                          869,995 

XIII. Total Comprehensive Income for the Period                          4,640,546                        (186,968)

XIV. Earning per Equity Share [Nominal Value ` 10/- per share ]       

     1) Basic                                    1.88                                0.59 

     2) Diluted                                    1.88                                0.59 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  AND NOTE TO ACCOUNTS 1 - 22

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE IN  AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS PER MY REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR YATIN KUMAR SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

                  Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

YATIN KUMAR SHAH M P SHARMA NIRMAL MURARKA

 PROPRIETOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

( Membership No.159796 ) DIN: 00175393 DIN:00192744

PLACE  :  MUMBAI

DATED  :  29TH MAY, 2019

Sd/-

NIRMAL TIWARI

COMPANY SECRETARY

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS



( ` In Lacs )

2018-2019 2017-2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit / ( Loss ) before tax and extra - ordinary items 46.30                             (15.49)                           

Adjustment For

Dividend Income 1.19                               -                                

Capital Gain 0.12                               

Other Income (0.13)                              (0.29)                             

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 47.48                             (15.78)                           

Adjustment For

Trade and other receivables (6.96)                              (267.00)                         

Inventories -                                

Trade Payable and Provision (0.18)                              (1.43)                             

Cash Generated from Operations 40.34                             (284.21)                         

Direct Taxes Paid (3.04)                              -                                

Cash flow before extra ordinary items 37.30                             (284.21)                         

Extra ordinary Items 0.29                               0.10                              

Net Cash from operating Activities                      (A) 37.59                             (284.11)                         

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENTS ACTIVITIES

Sale of Investments 0.67                               492.87                          

Purchase of Investments -                                 (211.45)                         

Dividend Income (1.19)                              -                                

Capital Gain (0.12)                              -                                

Other Income 0.13                               0.29                              

Net Cash used in Investing Activities                   (B) (0.51)                              281.71                          

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Equity Shares Issued -                                 -                                

Proceeds from Share Application Money -                                 -                                

Proceeds from Short Term Loan -                                 -                                

Repayment of Short Term Loan -                                 -                                

Net Cash used in Financing Activities                 (C) -                                 -                                

Net Cash and Cash Equivalents 37.08                             (2.40)                             

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at (Closing Balance) 44.73                             7.65                              

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at (Opening Balance) 7.65                               10.05                            

Net Increase/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (37.08)                            2.40                              
-                                 

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR YATIN KUMAR SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

           Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

YATIN KUMAR SHAH M P SHARMA NIRMAL MURARKA

 PROPRIETOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

( Membership No.159796 ) DIN: 00175393 DIN:00192744

PLACE  :  MUMBAI

DATED  :   29TH MAY, 2019

NIRMAL TIWARI

COMPANY SECRETARY

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

Sd/-



BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 
 

Corporate Information 

Bajrang Finance Limited is Public Company domiciled in India and incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity Number 
L65990MH1971PLC015344. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange in 
India. The Company is engaged in the business of Finance & Investment Company. 
The principal place of business of the company is at Goregaon, Maharashtra.  
 
1. Significant Accounting Policies:- 

 

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:- 

 The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015; and 
the other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder. 

  
 The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost 

convention basis, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair 
value. 

  
 The Company has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in 

accordance with Ind AS 101 „First time adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards‟. The transition was carried out from Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) as prescribed under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, which 
was the “Previous GAAP”. 

  
 The Company‟s presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees (Rs.). 

All figures appearing the financial statements are rounded off to the Rupee, 
except where otherwise indicated. 

  
1.2 Authorization of Financial Statements:- 

 The preparation of Company‟s financial statements requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and the accompanying disclosures 
along with contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that require material adjustments to the 
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The 
Company continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on 
the most recently available information. 

   



 → Assessment of functional currency; 

 → Financial instruments; 

 → Estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Intangible assets; 

 → Valuation of Inventories 

 → Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations and actuarial assumptions; 

 → Provisions; 

 → Evaluation of recoverability deferred tax assets; and 

 → Contingencies. 

 Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected. 

   
    
1.3 Borrowing Costs 

 1.3.1 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs incurred in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also include 
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs. 

    
 1.3.2 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction 

of qualifying assets (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use) are capitalized as a 
part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    
1.4 Impairment of Non-financial Assets  

 1.4.1 Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and 
non-current assets classified as held for sale are reviewed at each 
Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment 
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset‟s 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the assets 
or Cash-Generating Units (CGU‟s) fair value less costs of disposal and 
its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. 

    
    



 1.4.2 When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. 

    
    
1.5 Revenue Recognition 

 

1.5.1 Sale of Shares 

  Revenue from the sale of shares is recognized when the significant 
risks and rewards of the ownership of the shares have passed to the 
buyer, the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement 
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control 
over the shares sold, revenue and the associated costs can be 
estimated reliably and it is probable that economic benefits associated 
with the transaction will flow to the Company. 

    
  When the Company acts as an agent on behalf of a third party, the 

associated income is recognized on net basis. 
    

  

Export Sales are accounted for on the basis of the date of Bill of 
Lading. 

    
1.6 Classification of Income/ Expenses 

 1.6.1 Income/ expenditure (net) in aggregate pertaining to prior year(s) 
above the threshold limit are corrected retrospectively in the first set 
of financial statements approved for issue after their discovery by 
restating the comparative amounts and / or restating the opening 
Balance Sheet for the earliest prior period presented. 

    
 1.6.2 Prepaid expenses up to threshold limit in each case, are charged to 

revenue as and when incurred. 
    
1.7  Employee benefits  

  

1.7.1 Short term employment benefits  

   Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, 
short-term compensated absences, performance incentives 
etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia  are 
recognized as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related 
services are rendered. 

    



 
  1.7.2 The pension of Employees Provident Fund Act and ESIC are 

not applicable to the company 
     

  

1.7.3 → Compensated Absences: 
Liability for Compensated Absences is provided on the 
basis of actuals as at the Balance Sheet date. 

    

  1.7.4 Termination Benefits: 

  
 

→ Termination benefits are recognised as an expense as 
and when incurred. 

     
    
1.8 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments  

 1.8.1 Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. 

    
 1.8.2 The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss net of reimbursements, if any. 
    
 1.8.3 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 

discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is 
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognized as a finance cost. 

    
 1.8.4 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will 

only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.  

    
 1.8.5 Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements 

but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic 
resources is considered remote. 

    
 1.8.6 Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments disclosed are in 

respect of items which in each case are above the threshold limit. 



1.9 Fair Value measurement  

 1.9.1 The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at 
each reporting date. 

    
 1.9.2 Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement 

of fair values, for both financial and non- financial assets and 
liabilities.  

    
 1.9.3 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 

to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its 
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has 
access at that date. The fair value of a liability also reflects its non-
performance risk.  

    
 1.9.4 The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial 

recognition is normally the transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the 
consideration given or received. If the Company determines that the 
fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and 
the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation 
technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the 
financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to 
defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and 
the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss on an appropriate basis over the life of 
the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly 
supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.  

    
1.10 Financial Assets 

 1.10.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

  

Trade Receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised 
when they are originated. All other financial assets are initially 
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets other than those 
measured subsequently at fair value through profit and loss, are 
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

    

 

1.10.2 Subsequent measurement  

  Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the 



classification of the respective financial assets. Based on the 
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset, the Company 
classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value 
through profit and loss.  

    

  

Debt instruments at amortised cost  

  

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the 
following conditions are met:- 

  

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is - 

  

- To hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and 

  

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

    

  

Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI) 

  A 'debt instrument' is measured at the fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income if both the following conditions are met: 

  

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both 

  - collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

  
- contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash 

flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding. 

  After initial measurement, these assets are subsequently measured 
at fair value. Interest income under effective interest method, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in other comprehensive Income.  

  
 

  



  

Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)  

  Fair Value through Profit or Loss is a residual category for debt 
instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria 
for categorisation at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as 
FVTPL. 

  

After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any 
interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses, impairment 
losses and other net gains and losses are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    

 

1.10.3 Impairment of financial assets  

  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected 
Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amortised cost 
and debt instruments measured at FVOCI.  

    
  Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the 

„simplified approach‟ at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL at each 
reporting date. The application of simplified approach does not 
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Based on the 
past history and track records the company has assessed the risk of 
default by the customer and expects the credit loss to be 
insignificant. In respect of other financial assets such as debt 
securities and bank balances, the loss allowance is measured at 12 
month ECL only if there is no significant deterioration in the credit risk 
since initial recognition of the asset or asset is determined to have a 
low credit risk at the reporting date. 

    
1.11 Offsetting of financial instruments  

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is 
reported in the Balance Sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

   
1.12 Taxes on Income 

 

1.12.1 Current Tax 

  Income-tax Assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The 
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted, by the end of reporting period. 



    
  Current Tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity.  

    

 

1.12.2 Deferred tax 

  Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on 
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date. 

    

  
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. 

    

  

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused 
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

    

  

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets 
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will 
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

    

  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

    

  

Deferred Tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

    

  

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current 
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority. 



    
1.13 Earnings per share 

 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference 
dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period. 

   
 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for 

the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of 
all dilutive potential equity shares. 

   
1.14 Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current: 

 All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company‟s normal operating cycle (determined at 12 months) and other 
criteria set out in Schedule III of the Act. 

   
1.15 Cash and Cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet include cash at bank, cash, 
cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with an original maturity of less 
than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

   
 For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and cash equivalents 

include cash at bank, cash, cheque and draft on hand. The Company 
considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of 
purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash to be cash equivalents. 

   
1.16 Cash Flows 

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net profit before 
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are 
segregated. 
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As on 31-3-2019 As on 31-3-2018 As on 31-3-2017

Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

NOTE : 3

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on Hand                               113,099                           128,429                             129,989 

Total                               113,099                           128,429                             129,989 

NOTE : 4

BANK BALANCE

Balance with Banks in Current Accounts                            1,060,074                           636,466                             874,822 

Others - Fixed Deposit With Bank ( Less than 3 Months Maturity )                            3,300,000                                       -                                          -   

Total                            4,360,074                           636,466                             874,822 

NOTE : 5

 RECEIVABLE- OTHERS

( Unsecured considered good )

 Receivables considered good-Secured                                           -                                         -                                          -   

 Receivables considered good-Unsecured                            3,243,640                        2,129,955                         2,074,146 

 Receivables Which have significant increase in Credit Eisk; and                                           -                                         -                                          -   

receivable - credit impaired                                           -                                         -                                          -   

Total                            3,243,640                        2,129,955                         2,074,146 

NOTE : 6

LOANS

( Repayable on demand )

Loans & Considered good- Secured                                           -                                         -                                          -   

Loans & Considered good- Unsecured                                           -                                         -                                          -   

Loans & Considered good- Unsecured related parties                          30,000,000                     30,967,561                         3,967,330 

Loan which have significant Risk                                           -                                         -                                          -   

Loan - credit impaired                                           -                                         -                                          -   

Total                          30,000,000                     30,967,561                         3,967,330 

NOTE : 7

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

MAT Credit Entitlement                            5,182,396                        4,606,166                         4,606,166 

Advance recoverable in cash or Kind or for value to be received                                    4,295                                5,720                                        -   

Advance Tax & TDS ( Net )                                  96,428                           121,243                             482,641 

Total                            5,283,119                        4,733,129                         5,088,807 

NOTE : 8

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

A. Investments in Equity Shares 

a) Investments in Equity Shares of Associate Companies-Quoted (Trade)

271200 ( 271200 )  Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of K K Fincorp Ltd. 3,232,704                       2,834,040                   1,356,000                     

63084 ( 63084 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Remi Edelstahl Tubulars Ltd 1,924,062                       2,078,618                   2,583,290                     

97000 ( 97000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Remi Sales & Engg.Ltd. 1,425,900                       1,425,900                   1,425,900                     

340250( 340250 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Remi Securities Ltd. 4,491,300                       4,491,300                   4,491,300                     

114640 ( 1144640 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Remi Elektrotechnik

Ltd  ( Bonus Shares ) 1,257,601                       1,257,601                   1,257,601                     

b) Investment in other Companies - Quoted ( Non Trade )
10 ( 10 ) Equity shares of ` 6/- each fully paid up  of RMG Alloy Steel Ltd. 145                                 127                             46                                 

8774 ( 8774 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Rural Electrificiation Corpn.Ltd. 1,341,545                       1,094,117                   1,588,093                     

5359 (5359 )Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Ujjivan Financial Services Ltd. 1,863,860                       1,851,267                   2,268,733                     

160000 ( 160000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Bhairav Enterprises Ltd 800,000                          800,000                      800,000                        

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2019



As on 31-3-2019 As on 31-3-2018 As on 31-3-2017

Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

160000 ( 160000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Rishabh Enterprises Ltd 800,000                          800,000                      800,000                        

120000 ( 120000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Abhinandan Enterprises Ltd 600,000                          600,000                      600,000                        

 UNQUOTED, AT COST

a) Investment in Associate Companies ( Trade )

6500 ( 6500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 65,000                            65,000                        65,000                          

up  of Remi Car Fans Ltd

203560 ( 203560 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of Rajendra Finance Pvt.Ltd. 503,886                          503,886                      503,886                        

9600 ( 9600 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 48,000                            48,000                        48,000                          

up of Remi International Ltd.

60000 ( 60000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of Remi Finance & Investments Pvt.Ltd. 579,212                          579,212                      579,212                        

56840 ( 56840 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of Remi Fans Ltd. 738,800                          738,800                      738,800                        

16355 ( 16355 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of  Vishwakarma Job Works Ltd. 9,805,142                       9,805,142                   9,805,142                     

23500 ( 23500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of High Power Mercantile Ltd. 234,600                          234,600                      234,600                        

23500 ( 23500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of Vayudoot Trading Ltd. 250,680                          250,680                      250,680                        

 9500 ( 9500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Skyrise Mercantile Ltd -                                  -                              -                                

9300 ( 9300 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of  Remi Auto Fans Ltd. 59,000                            59,000                        59,000                          

9990 ( 9990 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of  Remi Coach Fans Ltd. 99,900                            99,900                        99,900                          

18000 ( 18000 )  Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Magnificent Trading Pvt Ltd. 180,000                          180,000                      180,000                        

13450 ( 13450 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Omkareshwar Realties & 

 & Services Pvt.Ltd. 139,286                          139,286                      139,286                        

b) Unquoted and Non Trade Other Companies
2500 ( 2500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 25,000                            25,000                        25,000                          

up  of Hanuman Forging & Engineering  Pvt Ltd.

500 ( 500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 5,000                              5,000                          5,000                            

up  of Lalshminarayan Realfinvest Ltd.

1000 ( 1000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of  Dholishakti Finance & Investments Ltd 10,500                            10,500                        10,500                          

4000 ( 4000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 629,050                          629,050                      629,050                        

up  of  Hanuman Freight & Carriers Pvt Ltd

10 ( 10 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 100                                 100                             100                               

up  of Dholishakti Enterprises Pvt Ltd.

B)- Investments in Preference Shares of Associate Companies

UNQUOTED , Trade At Cost

21074 ( 21074 )  Pref. shares of ` 1000/- each fully paid up of Magnificent Trading Pvt Ltd. 1,056,355                       1,056,355                   1,056,355                     

20000 ( 20000 ) Pref. Shares of ` 1000/- each fully paid  up of Calplus Trading Pvt Ltd. 1,002,510                       1,002,510                   1,002,510                     



As on 31-3-2019 As on 31-3-2018 As on 31-3-2017

Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

C)Invesment in Bonds,NCD & Mutual Fund

a) Investments in Bonds & NCD
-- ( 870 )Bonds  of ` 30000/- each fully paid  up of 0.00% RECL 2020 19,274,173                   

4 ( 4 )Bonds  of ` 20000/- each fully paid  up of 0.00% NABARD -                                  67,567                        8,935,713                     

50 ( 50 )  Non Convertible Debenture of ` 1000000/- each fully paid  up of Aspire Home 50,000,000                     50,000,000                 50,000,000                   

Finance Corporation  Ltd

D) Investment in Mutual Fund

585795.628 ( 585795.628 ) Units @ ` 10/- per units of ICICI Prudential Credit 

Risk Fund  ( Formerly Regular Saving Fund ) ( Growth )

                         11,630,679                     10,881,212                       10,073,224 

Total 94,799,817                     93,613,770                 120,886,094                 

NOTE : 9

LONG TERM LOAN & ADVANCES

( Unsecured and considered good )

Security Deposits                                  68,100                             68,100                               68,100 

Total                                  68,100                             68,100                               68,100 

NOTE : 10

PAYABLE

( I ) Trade Payable                                           -                                         -                                          -   

( II ) Other Payable

 a) Toatal Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and Small Enterprises

 b) Toatal Outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and Small 

Enterprises

                                 59,370                             62,573                               60,903 

Total                                  59,370                             62,573                               60,903 

NOTE : 11

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

TDS Payable                                  14,850                             75,588                             327,275 

Other Liabilities                               136,656                           133,776                             129,456 

Total                               151,506                           209,364                             456,731 

NOTE : 12

PROVISIONS

Contingent Provision  agt Advances                                  83,100                             77,419                                        -   

Leave Salary Payable                               145,658                           108,239                               82,991 

Total                               228,758                           185,658                               82,991 

NOTE : 13

EQUITY

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED:

20,00,000 (  20,00,000 )Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each                          20,000,000                     20,000,000                       20,000,000 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP :

18,00,000 (  18,00,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each                          18,000,000                     18,000,000                       18,000,000 

                         18,000,000                     18,000,000                       18,000,000 

A )Terms/ Rights Attached to Equity Shares:

i) The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,

after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

B) Reconciliation of Oustanding Shares:

Particulars No. of shares as on 

31st March 2019

No. of shares as on 

31st March 2018

No. of shares as on 

31st March 2017

Opening as on 1st April                            1,800,000                        1,800,000                         1,400,000 

Addition During The Year                                           -                               400,000 

                           1,800,000                        1,800,000                         1,800,000 

C) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares of the Company:-

Name of the Shareholder No. of shares as on 

31st March 2019

No. of shares as on 

31st March 2018

No. of shares as on 

31st March 2017

FULIDEVI SARAF FAMILY TRUST 197,000 197,000 197,000

REMI SALES & ENGG. LTD. 220,200 220,200 220,200

K K FINCORP LTD 276,450 276,450 276,450

REMI SECURITIES LTD. 270,350 270,350 270,350

DALEEP DHALUMAL JATWANI 400,000 400,000 400,000

Closing as on 31st March

TOTAL



As on 31-3-2019 As on 31-3-2018 As on 31-3-2017

Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

NOTE : 14

OTHER EQUITY

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

a) Securities Premium Reserve : -

   -  Balance as per last Balance Sheet                        54,000,000                    54,000,000                      18,000,000 

  -  Add: Received during the year                                         -                                       -                        36,000,000 

                       54,000,000                    54,000,000                      54,000,000 

b) Capital Reserve

      Balance as per last Balance Sheet                              240,740                          240,740                           240,740 

                             240,740                          240,740                           240,740 

c)  Special Reserve under section 45C of the RBI 

  -  Balance as per Last Balance Sheet                        27,000,000                    27,000,000                      27,000,000 

  -  Add: Transferred from surplus balance in statement of profit & loss                           1,000,000                                     -                                        -   

                       28,000,000                    27,000,000                      27,000,000 

d) Surplus : -

 - Opening Balance                        41,973,808                    42,160,776                      36,691,709 

 - Add: Profit / ( Loss ) for the period                           3,386,932                     (1,056,963)                      (1,649,906)

 - Add: Other Comprehensive Income                           1,253,614                          869,995                        7,118,973 

 - Less: Appropriations

              Transferred to special Reserve u/s 45C of the RBI                           1,000,000                                     -                                        -   

                       45,614,354                    41,973,808                      42,160,776 

                     127,855,094                  123,214,548                   123,401,516 

NOTE : 15

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries , Wages & Bonus                           1,336,437                      1,293,486 

Staf Welfare Exp                                      638                                 683 

                          1,337,075                      1,294,169 

NOTE : 16

OTHER EXPENSES

Rent                              159,300                          153,225 

Fee,Rates Taxes                                  6,800                              7,900 

Listing Fees & Processing Fees to BSE                              295,000                          287,500 

Legal & Prof. Fees                              189,030                            43,500 

Membership & Subscription                                23,600                            23,450 

Depository Charges                                32,638                            23,882 

S.T.T.                                  8,966                            18,250 

Future / Option Segments Loss                                         -                        3,089,471 

Contingent Provision against advances                                  5,681                            77,419 

Commission & Brokrage Paid                                         -                              18,480 

Payment to Auditors

         Audit Fees                                60,000                            59,000 

         Other Services ( Certification Fees )                                  9,680                              5,000 

Miscellaneous Expenditure                              239,200                          111,351 

Total                           1,029,895                      3,918,428 

Total Reserves and Surplus

Closing Balance

Closing Balance

Net surplus in the statement of Profit & Loss



 
17. The company does not have any outstanding amount payable to Micro, Small and   

Medium Enterprises as specified in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. 

 
 
18 Provisions of the Payment of the Gratuity Act, ESIC and the Employees‟ Provident 

Funds Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
 
19. The Significant component and classification of deferred tax assets and liabilities on        

account of timing differences are: - 
 
 

 
 

As at 
31-3-2019 

As at 
31-3-2018 

Deferred Tax Asset  ( ` ) ( ` ) 

On account of Employee Benefits  40,522 28,142 

On account of Business Loss 15,12,832 15,12,832 

On Account Long Term Capital Loss 68,73,525 78,53,759 

Net Deferred Tax Asset 84,26,879 93,94,733 

 
 
20. Earning per Share 

  As at 
31-03-2019 

As at 
31-03-2018 

a. Iighted average number of equity share of Rs.10/- each   

 i)   No. of shares at the beginning of the year 18,00,000 18,00,000 

 ii)  No. of shares at the end of the year 18,00,000 18,00,000 

 iii) Iighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the year. 

18,00,000 18,00,000 

b. Net profit / (loss) after tax available for equity 
Shareholders 

33,86,932 (10,56,963) 

c. Basic earnings from continuing operations for equity 
share (in Rs.) 

1.88 (0.59) 

d. Diluted earnings from continuing operations for equity 
share (in Rs.) 

1.88 (0.59) 

 
 
 
21. Related parties disclosures: 

 A)   Key Management Personnel 

   1)   Mr.Mahabir J.Sharma   - Executive Director cum CFO 

                                  ( ` ) 
  31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

 Salary &  Allowances   9,58,188 9,58,188 

 

 

 

 



 

B)  Non-Executive  Directors 

                                  ( ` ) 
  31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

 Reimbursement  of Conveyance Exp. 23,100 15,000 

 

 

C. Associate Companies: - 

Remi Securities Limited, Remi Finance & Investment Private Limited, Rajendra 
Finance Private Limited, ,Remi Elektrotechnik Ltd., Remi Edelstahl Tubulars Ltd. 

 

 
 

 31-03-2019 
( ` ) 

31-03-2018 
( ` ) 

a) Interest Received 2,36,495 1,37,351 

b) Interest Paid 4,334 43,311 

c) Loan Given 1,20,25,000 1,74,80,000 

d) Loan Received 8,00,000 28,00,000 

e) Loan outstanding Receivable / Payable at 
the year end  

NIL NIL 

 
 

 



 

22. Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations      

 

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences 
arising from the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS 101: 

 

 
(i) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at 1st April, 2017 (Transition Date); 

  

 
(ii) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2018; 

   

 
(iii) Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2018; 

 
(iv) Reconciliation of Total Equity as at 1st April, 2017 and as at 31st March, 2018; 

 

 

(v) Adjustments to Cash Flow Statements as at 31st March, 2018 
  

            The presentation requirements under previous GAAP differs from Ind AS, and hence, previous 
GAAP information has been regrouped for ease of reconciliation with Ind AS. The re-grouped 
previous GAAP information is derived from the Financial Statements of the Company 
prepared in accordance with previous GAAP. 

(i) & (ii) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at 1st April, 2018 (Transition Date) and 31st March, 2017: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Notes 

As at 31st March, 2018 
(End of the last period presented under 

previous GAAP) 

As at 1st April, 2017 
(Date of transition) 

Previous 
GAAP 

Effects 
of 

transition 
to Ind 

AS 

Amount as 
per Ind AS 

balance 
sheet 

Previous 
GAAP 

Effects 
of 

transition 
to Ind 

AS 

Amount as 
per Ind AS 

balance 
sheet 

(1) Financial assets        

 (a) Cash and cash equivalents   128429  128429 129989  129989 

 (b) Bank Balance   636466  636466 874822  874822 

 (c) Receivable  2129955  2129955 2074146  2074146 

 (d) Loans  30967561  30967561 3967330  3967330 

 (e ) Other Financial Assets  4733129  4733129 5088807  5088807 

  Total Financial assets  38595540  38595540 12135094  12135094 

           

(2) Non Financial Assets        

 (a) Deferred Tax Assets  9394733  9394733 8912853  8912853 

 (b) Other Non Currents Investment  85624802 7988968 93613770 13767121 7118973 120886094 

 (c) Loang Term Loans & Advance  68100  68100 68100  68100 

 (d) Other current assets  -      

  Total current assets  95087635 7988968 103076603 122748074 7118973 129867047 

           

   Total Assets  133683175 7988968 141672143 134883168 7118973 142002141 
 

  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES        

 Equity         

 (a) Equity Share capital  18000000  18000000 18000000 7118973 18000000 

 (b) Other Equity  115225580 7988968 123214548 116282543  123401516 

   Total equity  133225580 7988968 141214548 134282543 7118973 141401516 

           

 Liabilities         

(1) Financial liabilities        

 (a) Financial Liabilities        

  (i) Borrowings        

  (ii) Trade Payables  62573  62573 60903  60903 

  (iii) Other financial liabilities 
(other than those specified in 

       

   item (b), to be specified)        

 (b) Provisions        

 (c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)        

 (d) Other non-current liabilities  209364  209364 456731  456731 

 Total non current liabilities  271937  271937 517634  517634  

           

           

(2) Current liabilities         

 (a) Financial Liabilities        

  (i) Borrowings        

  (ii) Trade payables        

  (iii) Other financial liabilities        

 (b) Other current liabilities        

 (c) Provisions  185658  185658 82991  82991 

 (d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)        

 Total current liabilities  185658  185658 82991  82991  

           

 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  133683175  141672143 134883168  142002141  

 



(iii) Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2018: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Notes Previous GAAP 
Effects of 

transition to 
Ind AS 

Amount as per 
Ind AS 
SOP&L 

I Revenue From Operations  4298874  4298874 

II Other Income  128959  128959 

III Total Income (I+II)    4327833  4327833 

IV EXPENSES          

  (1) Cost of materials consumed      

  (2) Purchase of Stock in Trade     

  (3) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade 
and work-in-progress 

     

  (4) Excise Duty       

  (5) Employee benefits expense    1294169  1294169 

  (6) Finance costs    664189  664189 

  (7) Depreciation and amortization expense       

  (8) Other expenses    3918428  3918428 

  Total expenses (IV)    5876786  5876786 

V Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV)   (1548953)  (1548953) 

V Tax expense:          

VI (1) Current tax    10110  10110 

  (2) Deferred tax    (481880)  (481880) 

  (3) Tax in respect of Earlier Years       

        (491990)  (491990) 

IX Profit for the year (V-VI)    (1056963)  (1056963) 

X Other Comprehensive Income     869995 869995 

  Items that will  be reclassified to profit or loss          

XI   Total comprehensive income for the year ( VII + VIII )   (1056963) 869995 (186968) 

 
Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income: 

Particulars  For the year ended 
31st March, 2018 

(Audited) 

Net Profit under Previous Indian GAAP 
  

 (1056963) 

 Fair valuation (gain)/loss on financial assets  - 
 Tax impact due to above adjustment  - 
 Tax adjustment to Profit / (Loss)  - 
Net profit under Ind AS before other comprehensive income   
Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes)   869995 
Tax impact due to above adjustment   
Total Comprehensive income as per Ind AS  (186968) 

 

 
Notes to First time adoption : 
 

1. Security Deposits : 
Under the previous IGAAP interest free security deposits (that are refundable in cash 
on completion of the lease term) are recorded at transaction price. Under Ind AS all 
financial assets are required to be recognized at fair value. Accordingly the company 
has fair valued security deposits and the difference between the fair value and 
transaction value of the Security deposit has been recognized as prepaid rent. 
 

2. Employee Benefit Cost : 
Under Ind AS the actuarial gains and losses form part of the remeasurement of the 
net defined benefit Liability / Assets and is recognized in other comprehensive 
income. Under IGAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognized in profit or loss. 
Consequently, the deferred tax effect of the same has also been recognized in other 
comprehensive income under Ind AS insteed of profit or loss. 

 
3. Fair Valuation of Investment : 

Under IGAAP investment in equity / other instruments were classified into long term 
and current investments. Long term investments were carried at cost less provision, 
other than temporary in nature. Current investments were carried at lower of cost as 
fair value. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value 
either through other comprehensive income or through profit and loss. The company 
has opted to fair value of these investments through other comprehensive income. 
 
 
 
 



4. Deferred Taxes: 
Under previous GAAP, deferred taxes were recognized based on profit and loss 
approach i.e. tax impact on difference between the accounting income and taxable 
income. Under Ind AS deferred tax is recognized by following Balance Sheet 
approach i.e. tax impact on temporary difference between the carrying value of 
assets and liabilities in the books and their respective tax base. Also deferred tax has 
been recognized on the adjustments made on transition to Ind AS. 
 

5. Other Equity: 
Adjustments to retained earnings and other comprehensive income have been made 
in accordance with Ind AS, for the above mentioned items. 
 

6. Optional Exemption availed:  
 

a) Deemed Cost 
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognized in the financial statement 
as at 31.03.2017 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed 
cost as at the transition date. 

 
b) Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying amount of investment as  
recognized in the financial statement as at 31.03.2017 measured as per the previous 
GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the transition date. 
 

7. Applicable Mandatory Exceptions 
 

a) Estimates 
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS 
shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with 
previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies)   
Ind AS estimates as at 1st April, 2017 are consistent with the estimates as at the 
same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made estimates 
for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were 
not required under previous GAAP. 

(i) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model. 
 

b) Depreciation of financial assets and financial liabilities 
Ind AS 101 requires first time adopter to apply the derecognition provisions of Ind AS 
109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind 
AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows the first time adopter to apply the de-recognition   
requirement in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from the date to the entities choosing, 
provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and 
financial liabilities to de-recognized as a result of past transactions was obtained at 
the time of initially accounting for those transactions. The Company has elected to 
apply the de-recognition provision of Ind AS 109 perceptively from the date of 
transition to Ind AS.     
 

c) Classification and measurement of financial assets 
As required under Ind AS 101 the Company has assessed the classification and 
measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that 
exist at the date of transition Ind AS. Where practicable, measurement of financial 
assets accounted at amortized cost  has been done retrospectively.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



d) Impairment of financial assets 
Ind AS 101 requres an entity to apply the Ind AS requirements retrospectively if it is 
practicable,  without undue cost and effort to determine the credit risk that debt 
financial instruments where initially recognized.  The Company has measured 
impairment losses on financial assets as on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2017 in 
view of Cost and effort.   

 
SIGNATURE TO NOTES 1 TO 22 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 
I have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 

(“The Parent Company”), and its Associates ( The Parent   company and its Associates 
together referred to as The Group ) which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, 
and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (Collectively referred to as 
„consolidated financial statements‟). 
in my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to 
my, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial 
position) of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its profit (financial performance 
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date :- 
a. In the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as 

at 31st March  2019, 
 
b. In the case of the consolidated statement of profit and loss, of the profit (financial 

performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity; and 
 

c. In the case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flow statement for the 
year ended on that date. 

 
Other Matter 

 Consolidated Financial statements and other financial information include the 
company‟s Share in Associates Companies which reflects total assets of Rs. 913.26 
lakhs as at 31.03.2019 and total share in profit of Rs.76.19 lakhs for the year then 
ended. 

 
Basis for Opinion  

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. My responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the 

financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

there under, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. I believe that the audit evidence I have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, Ire of most 
significance. in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters Ire 
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
my opinion thereon, I have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in 
„my report. 



Other Information 
The Company‟s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and my auditor's report thereon. 
 
My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, than I have required to report that fact. I 
have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
The Company‟s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the. Indian Accounting Standards („Ind AS‟) specified under section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that Ire operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company‟s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related. 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

 
Boards of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company‟s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor‟s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of meres taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing („SAs‟), I exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3} of the Act, I 
am also responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies made and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management‟s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company‟s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention in my auditor‟s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor‟s 
report. However, future events or conditions may came the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

• Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. I 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluated the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

 
• I communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 
 

• I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
• From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine 

those matters that Ire of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe 
these matters in my auditor‟s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstance, I determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in my report became the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

 
 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that: 
 

a. I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of my knowledge and belief Ire necessary for the purposes of my audit. 

 
b. In my opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

company so far as it appears from my examination of those books; 
 
c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 

Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in-agreement with the books of 

accounts; 
 
d. In my opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 

Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with       
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard), Rules 2016. 

 
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 

March 2019, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31 March 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164(2) of the Act ; 

 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

Reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
Refer to our separate Report in “Annexure”. 

 
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor‟s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations 
given to me : 

 

i. The Company did not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position. 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative 

contract; as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable 
losses thereon does not arise. 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

iii. There has not been any occasion in case of the Company during the year 
under report to transfer any sums to the investor education and protection 
fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise. 

 

 
 For YATIN KUMAR SHAH, 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
PLACE  :  MUMBAI 
DATED :  29TH MAY, 2019 

 
 
 

Sd/-    
 

(YATIN KUMAR SHAH) 
PROPRITOR 

Membership Number 159796 
 



 ANNEXURE -  TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
  

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
  
I have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bajrang Finance 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with my audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
  

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

  
The Company‟s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India („ICAI‟). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that Ire operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company‟s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
  

Auditors’ Responsibility 
  
My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 
  
My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. My 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor‟s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
  
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my audit opinion on the Company‟s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
 

Contd………2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



:   2   : 
  

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

  
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 
  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
  
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
  

Opinion 
  
In my opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting Ire operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
 
  For YATIN KUMAR SHAH, 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT, 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
PLACE  :  MUMBAI 
DATED :  29TH MAY, 2019 

 
 

Sd/- 
 
 

(YATIN KUMAR SHAH) 
PROPRITOR 

Membership Number 159796 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Particulars  As at   As at   As at  

 31st March 2019  31st March 2018  1st April 2017 

Note No Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

I. ASSETS

  Financial Assets

  Cash and Cash equivalents 3 113,099                                128,429                        129,989                      

  Bank Balance other than (a) above 4 4,360,074                             636,466                        874,822                      

  Receivables 5 3,243,640                             2,129,955                    2,074,146                   

  Loans 6 30,000,000                          30,967,561                  3,967,330                   

  Other Financial Assets 7 5,283,119                             4,733,129                    5,088,807                   

42,999,932                          38,595,540                  12,135,094                

  Non-Financial Assets

  Deferred tax Assets ( Net ) 8,426,879                             9,394,733                    8,912,853                   

  Other Non-Currents Investments 8 174,013,745                        171,103,300                180,330,599              

  Long Term Loans & Advances 9 68,100                                  68,100                          68,100                        

182,508,724                        180,566,133                189,311,552              

Total 225,508,656                        219,161,673               201,446,646              

II. LIABLITIES AND EQUITY

     LIABLITIES 

  Financial Liabilities

  Payable 10 59,370                                  62,573                          60,903                        

  Other Financial Liabilities 11 151,506                                209,364                        456,731                      

210,876                                271,937                        517,634                      

  Non Financial Liabilities

  Provisions 12 228,758                                185,658                        82,991                        

-                                         -                                -                               

228,758                                185,658                        82,991                        

(3) EQUITY

  Equity Share Capital 13 18,000,000                          18,000,000                  18,000,000                

  Other Equity 14 207,069,022                        200,704,078                182,846,021              

225,069,022                        218,704,078                200,846,021              

Total 225,508,656                        219,161,673               201,446,646              -                                         -                                -                               

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  AND NOTE TO ACCOUNTS

AS PER MY REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR YATIN KUMAR SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

YATIN KUMAR SHAH M P SHARMA NIRMAL MURARKA

 PROPRIETOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

( Membership No.159796 ) DIN: 00175393  DIN:00192744

PLACE  :  MUMBAI

DATED  :   29TH MAY, 2019

COMPANY SECRETARY

NIRMAL TIWARI

Sd/-

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2019



For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31st March 2019 31st March 2018

Particulars Note No Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

I. Revenue from Operations

   Interest Income                            3,846,141                            1,212,419 

  Dividend Income                                119,104                                 92,466 

  Capital Gain  on Sale of Investments                                  12,433                            2,993,989 

  Future & Option Segments Gain                            3,009,908                                          -   

Total from Revenue from Operations                            6,987,586                            4,298,874 

II. Other Income

 Interest from Income Tax Refund                                          -                                   28,959 

  Other Income                                  13,354                                          -   

                                 13,354                                 28,959 

II. Total Revenue (I +II)                            7,000,940                            4,327,833 

III. Expenses:

  Finance Cost                                    4,334                               664,189 

  Employee Benefits Expenses 15                            1,337,075                            1,294,169 

  Other Expenses 16                            1,029,895                            3,918,428 

Total Expenses                            2,371,304                            5,876,786 

IV. Profit before Tax                            4,629,636                          (1,548,953)

V. Tax Expense:

         (1) Current Tax                                880,000                                          -   

                Less : MAT credit entitlement                                576,230                                          -   

                               303,770                                          -   

          (2) Earlier year tax adjustment                                  28,920                                 10,110 

         (3) Deferred Tax / ( Credit )                                967,854                             (481,880)

VI. Profit for the Period from continuing Operations                            3,386,932                          (1,056,963)

VII. Profit for the Period from discontinuing Operations                                          -                                            -   

VIII. Tax Expenses of discontinued Operations                                          -                                            -   

IX. Profit for the Period from discontinuing Operations ( After Tax )                                          -                                            -   

X. Profit for the Period from discontinuing Operations ( After Tax )                                          -                                            -   

XI. Profit for the Period                            3,386,932                          (1,056,963)

XII. Share in Profit of Associate Companies                            1,724,398                         18,045,025 

                           5,111,330                         16,988,062 

XIII. Other Comprehensive Income- net of tax                            1,253,614                               869,995 

XIV. Total Comprehensive Income for the Period                            6,364,944                         17,858,057 

XV. Earning per Equity Share [Nominal Value ` 10/- per share ]       

     1) Basic                                      2.84                                     9.44 

     2) Diluted                                      2.84                                     9.44 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  AND NOTE TO ACCOUNTS

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE IN  AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS PER MY REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR YATIN KUMAR SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

              Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

YATIN KUMAR SHAH M P SHARMA NIRMAL MURARKA NIRMAL TIWARI

 PROPRIETOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY

( Membership No.159796 ) DIN: 00175393  DIN:00192744

PLACE  :  MUMBAI

DATED  :   29TH MAY, 2019

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS



( ` In Lacs )

2018-2019 2017-2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit / ( Loss ) before tax and extra - ordinary items 46.30                             (15.49)                               

Adjustment For

Dividend Income 1.19                               -                                   

Share Profit of Associate Company 17.24                             180.45                              

Capital Gain 0.12                               -                                   

Other Income (0.13)                              (0.29)                                

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 64.72                             164.67                              

Adjustment For

Trade and other receivables (6.96)                              (267.00)                             

Inventories -                                   

Trade Payable and Provision (0.18)                              (1.43)                                

Cash Generated from Operations 57.58                             (103.76)                             

Direct Taxes Paid (3.04)                              -                                   

Cash flow before extra ordinary items 54.54                             (103.76)                             

Extra ordinary Items 0.29                               0.10                                  

Net Cash from operating Activities                      (A) 54.83                             (103.66)                             

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENTS ACTIVITIES

Sale of Investments 0.67                               492.87                              

Purchase of Investments -                                 (211.45)                             

Purchase of Investments - Associate (17.24)                            (180.45)                             

Dividend Income (1.19)                              -                                   

Capital Gain (0.12)                              -                                   

Other Income 0.13                               0.29                                  

Net Cash used in Investing Activities                   (B) (17.75)                            101.26                              

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Equity Shares Issued -                                 -                                   

Proceeds from Share Application Money -                                 -                                   

Proceeds from Short Term Loan -                                 -                                   

Repayment of Short Term Loan -                                 -                                   

Net Cash used in Financing Activities                 (C) -                                 -                                   

Net Cash and Cash Equivalents 37.08                             (2.40)                                

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at (Closing Balance) 44.73                             7.65                                  

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at (Opening Balance) 7.65                               10.05                                

Net Increase/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (37.08)                            2.40                                  
-                                 

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR YATIN KUMAR SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

YATIN KUMAR SHAH M P SHARMA NIRMAL MURARKA

 PROPRIETOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

( Membership No.159796 ) DIN: 00175393 DIN:00192744

PLACE  :  MUMBAI

DATED  :  29TH MAY, 2019

NIRMAL TIWARI

COMPANY SECRETARY

Sd/-

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019



BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 
 

Corporate Information 

Bajrang Finance Limited is Public Company domiciled in India and incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity Number 
L65990MH1971PLC015344. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange in 
India. The Company is engaged in the business of Finance & Investment Company. 
The principal place of business of the company is at Goregaon, Maharashtra.  
 
1. Significant Accounting Policies:- 

 

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:- 

 The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015; and 
the other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder. 

  
 The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost 

convention basis, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair 
value. 

  
 The Company has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in 

accordance with Ind AS 101 „First time adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards‟. The transition was carried out from Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) as prescribed under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, which 
was the “Previous GAAP”. 

  
 The Company‟s presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees (Rs.). 

All figures appearing the financial statements are rounded off to the Rupee, 
except where otherwise indicated. 

  
1.2 Authorization of Financial Statements:- 

 The preparation of Company‟s financial statements requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and the accompanying disclosures 
along with contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that require material adjustments to the 
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The 
Company continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on 
the most recently available information. 

   



 → Assessment of functional currency; 

 → Financial instruments; 

 → Estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Intangible assets; 

 → Valuation of Inventories 

 → Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations and actuarial assumptions; 

 → Provisions; 

 → Evaluation of recoverability deferred tax assets; and 

 → Contingencies. 

 Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected. 

   
    
1.3 Borrowing Costs 

 1.3.1 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs incurred in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also include 
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs. 

    
 1.3.2 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction 

of qualifying assets (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use) are capitalized as a 
part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    
1.4 Impairment of Non-financial Assets  

 1.4.1 Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and 
non-current assets classified as held for sale are reviewed at each 
Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment 
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset‟s 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the assets 
or Cash-Generating Units (CGU‟s) fair value less costs of disposal and 
its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. 

    
    



 1.4.2 When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. 

    
    
1.5 Revenue Recognition 

 

1.5.1 Sale of Shares 

  Revenue from the sale of shares is recognized when the significant 
risks and rewards of the ownership of the shares have passed to the 
buyer, the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement 
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control 
over the shares sold, revenue and the associated costs can be 
estimated reliably and it is probable that economic benefits associated 
with the transaction will flow to the Company. 

    
  When the Company acts as an agent on behalf of a third party, the 

associated income is recognized on net basis. 
    

  

Export Sales are accounted for on the basis of the date of Bill of 
Lading. 

    
1.6 Classification of Income/ Expenses 

 1.6.1 Income/ expenditure (net) in aggregate pertaining to prior year(s) 
above the threshold limit are corrected retrospectively in the first set 
of financial statements approved for issue after their discovery by 
restating the comparative amounts and / or restating the opening 
Balance Sheet for the earliest prior period presented. 

    
 1.6.2 Prepaid expenses up to threshold limit in each case, are charged to 

revenue as and when incurred. 
    
1.7  Employee benefits  

  

1.7.1 Short term employment benefits  

   Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, 
short-term compensated absences, performance incentives 
etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia  are 
recognized as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related 
services are rendered. 

    



 
  1.7.2 The pension of Employees Provident Fund Act and ESIC are 

not applicable to the company 
     

  

1.7.3 → Compensated Absences: 
Liability for Compensated Absences is provided on the 
basis of actuals as at the Balance Sheet date. 

    

  1.7.4 Termination Benefits: 

  
 

→ Termination benefits are recognised as an expense as 
and when incurred. 

     
    
1.8 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments  

 1.8.1 Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
theobligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. 

    
    
 1.8.2 The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss net of reimbursements, if any. 
    
 1.8.3 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 

discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is 
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognized as a finance cost. 

    
 1.8.4 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will 

only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.  

    
 1.8.5 Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements 

but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic 
resources is considered remote. 

    
 1.8.6 Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments disclosed are in 



respect of items which in each case are above the threshold limit. 
    
1.9 Fair Value measurement  

 1.9.1 The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at 
each reporting date. 

    
 1.9.2 Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement 

of fair values, for both financial and non- financial assets and 
liabilities.  

    
 1.9.3 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 

to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its 
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has 
access at that date. The fair value of a liability also reflects its non-
performance risk.  

    
 1.9.4 The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial 

recognition is normally the transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the 
consideration given or received. If the Company determines that the 
fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and 
the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation 
technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the 
financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to 
defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and 
the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss on an appropriate basis over the life of 
the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly 
supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.  

    
1.10 Financial Assets 

 1.10.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

  

Trade Receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised 
when they are originated. All other financial assets are initially 
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets other than those 
measured subsequently at fair value through profit and loss, are 
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

    



 

1.10.2 Subsequent measurement  

  Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the 
classification of the respective financial assets. Based on the 
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset, the Company 
classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value 
through profit and loss.  

    

  

Debt instruments at amortised cost  

  

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the 
following conditions are met:- 

  

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is - 

  

- To hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and 

  

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

    

  

Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI) 

  A 'debt instrument' is measured at the fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income if both the following conditions are met: 

  

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both 

  - collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

  
- contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash 

flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding. 

  After initial measurement, these assets are subsequently measured 
at fair value. Interest income under effective interest method, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are 



recognised in other comprehensive Income.  
    

  

Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)  

  Fair Value through Profit or Loss is a residual category for debt 
instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria 
for categorisation at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as 
FVTPL. 

  

After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any 
interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses, impairment 
losses and other net gains and losses are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    

 

1.10.3 Impairment of financial assets  

  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected 
Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amortised cost 
and debt instruments measured at FVOCI.  

    
  Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the 

„simplified approach‟ at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL at each 
reporting date.The application of simplified approach does not 
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Based on the 
past history and track records the company has assessed the risk of 
default by the customer and expects the credit loss to be 
insignificant. In respect of other financial assets such as debt 
securities and bank balances, the loss allowance is measured at 12 
month ECL only if there is no significant deterioration in the credit risk 
since initial recognition of the asset or asset is determined to have a 
low credit risk at the reporting date. 

    
1.11 Offsetting of financial instruments  

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is 
reported in the Balance Sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

   
1.12 Taxes on Income 

 

1.12.1 Current Tax 

  Income-tax Assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The 



tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted, by the end of reporting period. 

    
  Current Tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity.  

    

 

1.12.2 Deferred tax 

  Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on 
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date. 

    

  
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. 

    

  

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused 
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

    

  

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets 
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will 
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

    

  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

    

  

Deferred Tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

    

  
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current 



tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority. 

    
1.13 Earnings per share 

 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference 
dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period. 

   
 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for 

the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of 
all dilutive potential equity shares. 

   
1.14 Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current: 

 All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company‟s normal operating cycle (determined at 12 months) and other 
criteria set out in Schedule III of the Act. 

   
1.15 Cash and Cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet include cash at bank, cash, 
cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with an original maturity of less 
than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

   
 For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and cash equivalents 

include cash at bank, cash, cheque and draft on hand. The Company 
considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of 
purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash to be cash equivalents. 

   
1.16 Cash Flows 

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net profit before 
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are 
segregated. 

  
 



NOTE - 2
EQUITY SHAE CAPITAL : (Amount in Rs.)

Balance Changes in Balance Changes in Balance

as at equity share as at equity share as at

April 1, 2017 capital during April 1, 2018 capital during March 31, 2019

the year the year

   Paid up Capital (Equity shares of Rs.10/-

   each issued, subscribed & fully paid up)

OTHER EQUITY :
Capital Securities Special Reserve Retained Other

Reserve Premium u/s 45C of the Earnings Comprehensive Total

Reserve RBI Act Income

  Balance as at April 1, 2017 240,740                    54,000,000                        27,000,000                 101,605,281                -                                 182,846,021                   

  Profit for the year 16,988,062                  869,995                         17,858,057                      

  Other Comprehensive Income: 869,995                        (869,995)                       -                                    

              (Net of tax) -                            -                                       -                               -                                -                                 -                                    

  Others -                                       -                                    

  Balance as at March 31, 2018 240,740                    54,000,000                        27,000,000                 119,463,338                -                                 200,704,078                   

  Profit for the year 5,111,330                    1,253,614                     6,364,944                        

  Other Comprehensive Income: 1,253,614                    (1,253,614)                    -                                    

               (Net of tax) 1,000,000                   (1,000,000)                   -                                    

  Balance as at March 31, 2019 240,740                    54,000,000                        28,000,000                 124,828,282                -                                 207,069,022                   
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Yatin Kumar Shah, For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountant

Sd/-

(Mahabir J. Sharma)

 Director

DIN: 00175393

Place : Mumbai

Dated: 29th May, 2019

Company Secretary

(Nirmal Murarka)

Director

DIN: 00192744

Proprietor

M. No.159796

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars

18,000,000                        -                               18,000,000                  

Sd/-

(Nirmal Tiwari)

-                                 18,000,000                      

Sd/- Sd/-

Particulars

(Yatin Kumar Shah)



As on 31-3-2019 As on 31-3-2018 As on 31-3-2017

Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

NOTE : 3

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on Hand                                       113,099                             128,429                        129,989 

Total                                       113,099                             128,429                        129,989 

NOTE : 4

BANK BALANCE

Balance with Banks in Current Accounts                                   1,060,074                             636,466                        874,822 

Others - Fixed Deposit With Bank ( Less than 3 Months Maturity )                                   3,300,000                                         -                                     -   

Total                                   4,360,074                             636,466                        874,822 

NOTE : 5

 RECEIVABLE- OTHERS

( Unsecured considered good )

 Receivables considered good-Secured                                                  -                                           -                                     -   

 Receivables considered good-Unsecured                                   3,243,640                          2,129,955                    2,074,146 

 Receivables Which have significant increase in Credit Eisk; and                                                  -                                           -                                     -   

receivable - credit impaired                                                  -                                           -                                     -   

Total                                   3,243,640                          2,129,955                    2,074,146 

NOTE : 6

LOANS

( Repayable on demand )

Loans & Considered good- Secured                                                  -                                           -                                     -   

Loans & Considered good- Unsecured                                                  -                                           -                                     -   

Loans & Considered good- Unsecured related parties                                 30,000,000                        30,967,561                    3,967,330 

Loan which have significant Risk                                                  -                                           -                                     -   

Loan - credit impaired                                                  -                                           -                                     -   

Total                                 30,000,000                        30,967,561                    3,967,330 

NOTE : 7

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

MAT Credit Entitlement                                   5,182,396                          4,606,166                    4,606,166 

Advance recoverable in cash or Kind or for value to be received                                           4,295                                  5,720                                   -   

Advance Tax & TDS ( Net )                                         96,428                             121,243                        482,641 

Total                                   5,283,119                          4,733,129                    5,088,807 

NOTE : 8

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

A. Investments in Equity Shares 

a) Investments in Equity Shares of Associate Companies-Quoted 

(Trade)
271200 ( 271200 )  Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of K K Fincorp Ltd. 3,232,704                              2,834,040                     1,356,000                

63084 ( 63084 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Remi Edelstahl Tubulars Ltd 1,924,062                              2,078,618                     2,583,290                

97000 ( 97000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Remi Sales & Engg.Ltd. 1,425,900                              1,425,900                     1,425,900                

340250( 340250 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Remi Securities Ltd. 4,491,300                              4,491,300                     4,491,300                

114640 ( 1144640 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Remi Elektrotechnik

Ltd  ( Bonus Shares ) 1,257,601                              1,257,601                     1,257,601                

b) Investment in other Companies - Quoted ( Non Trade )

10 ( 10 ) Equity shares of ` 6/- each fully paid up  of RMG Alloy Steel Ltd. 145                                        127                               46                            

8774 ( 8774 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Rural Electrificiation Corpn.Ltd. 1,341,545                              1,094,117                     1,588,093                

5359 (5359 )Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Ujjivan Financial Services Ltd. 1,863,860                              1,851,267                     2,268,733                

160000 ( 160000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Bhairav Enterprises Ltd 800,000                                 800,000                        800,000                   

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2019



As on 31-3-2019 As on 31-3-2018 As on 31-3-2017

Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

160000 ( 160000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Rishabh Enterprises Ltd 800,000                            800,000                    800,000                   

120000 ( 120000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Abhinandan Enterprises Ltd 600,000                            600,000                    600,000                   

 UNQUOTED, AT COST

a) Investment in Associate Companies ( Trade )

6500 ( 6500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 65,000                             65,000                      65,000                     

up  of Remi Car Fans Ltd

9600 ( 9600 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Remi International Ltd. 48,000                             48,000                      48,000                     

203560 ( 203560 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Rajendra Finance Pvt.Ltd. 16,168,997                       16,122,149               15,940,135              

Add : Share Profit in Associate Company 341,242                            46,848                      182,014                   

16,510,239                       16,168,997               16,122,149              

60000 ( 60000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Remi Finance & Investments Pvt.Ltd. 18,945,057                       18,859,343               18,413,055              

Add : Share Profit in Associate Company 77,712                             85,714                      446,288                   

19,022,769                       18,945,057               18,859,343              

56840 ( 56840 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Remi Fans Ltd. 12,308,672                       10,834,971               9,485,472                

Add : Share Profit in Associate Company 1,072,398                         1,473,701                 1,349,499                

13,381,070                       12,308,672               10,834,971              

16355 ( 16355 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of  Vishwakarma Job Works Ltd. 26,904,456                       12,536,879               12,480,668              

Add : Share Profit in Associate Company (107,963)                          14,367,577               56,211                     

26,796,493                       26,904,456               12,536,879              

23500 ( 23500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of High Power Mercantile Ltd. 8,067,897                         6,824,641                 5,483,676                

Add : Share Profit in Associate Company 147,874                            1,243,256                 1,340,965                

8,215,771                         8,067,897                 6,824,641                

23500 ( 23500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  of Vayudoot Trading Ltd. 7,206,771                         6,378,842                 5,563,905                

Add : Share Profit in Associate Company 193,135                            827,929                    814,937                   

7,399,906                         7,206,771                 6,378,842                

 9500 ( 9500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Skyrise Mercantile Ltd -                                   -                            -                          

9300 ( 9300 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of  Remi Auto Fans Ltd. 59,000                             59,000                      59,000                     

9990 ( 9990 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of  Remi Coach Fans Ltd. 99,900                             99,900                      99,900                     

18000 ( 18000 )  Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Magnificent Trading Pvt Ltd. 180,000                            180,000                    180,000                   

13450 ( 13450 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Omkareshwar Realties & 

 & Services Pvt.Ltd. 139,286                            139,286                    139,286                   

b) Unquoted and Non Trade Other Companies

2500 ( 2500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 25,000                             25,000                      25,000                     

up  of Hanuman Forging & Engineering  Pvt Ltd.

500 ( 500 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 5,000                               5,000                        5,000                       

up  of Lalshminarayan Realfinvest Ltd.

1000 ( 1000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

up  of  Dholishakti Finance & Investments Ltd 10,500                             10,500                      10,500                     

4000 ( 4000 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 629,050                            629,050                    629,050                   

up  of  Hanuman Freight & Carriers Pvt Ltd

10 ( 10 ) Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid 100                                  100                           100                          

up  of Dholishakti Enterprises Pvt Ltd.

B)- Investments in Preference Shares of Associate Companies

UNQUOTED , Trade At Cost

21074 ( 21074 )  Pref. shares of ` 1000/- each fully paid up of Magnificent Trading Pvt Ltd. 1,056,355                         1,056,355                 1,056,355                

20000 ( 20000 ) Pref. Shares of ` 1000/- each fully paid  up of Calplus Trading Pvt Ltd. 1,002,510                         1,002,510                 1,002,510                



As on 31-3-2019 As on 31-3-2018 As on 31-3-2017

Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

C)Invesment in Bonds,NCD & Mutual Fund

a) Investments in Bonds & NCD

-- ( 870 )Bonds  of ` 30000/- each fully paid  up of 0.00% RECL 2020 19,274,173              

4 ( 4 )Bonds  of ` 20000/- each fully paid  up of 0.00% NABARD -                                   67,567                      8,935,713                

50 ( 50 )  Non Convertible Debenture of ` 1000000/- each fully paid  up of Aspire Home 50,000,000                       50,000,000               50,000,000              

Finance Corporation  Ltd

D) Investment in Mutual Fund

585795.628 ( 585795.628 ) Units @ ` 10/- per units of ICICI 

Prudential Credit Risk Fund  ( Formerly Regular Saving Fund ) ( 

                          11,630,679                   10,881,212                  10,073,224 

Total 174,013,745                     171,103,300             180,330,599            

NOTE : 9

LONG TERM LOAN & ADVANCES

( Unsecured and considered good )

Security Deposits                                   68,100                           68,100                         68,100 

Total                                   68,100                           68,100                         68,100 

NOTE : 10

PAYABLE

( I ) Trade Payable                                            -                                      -                                    -   

( II ) Other Payable

 a) Toatal Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and Small 

 b) Toatal Outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro 

enterprises and Small Enterprises

                                  59,370                           62,573                         60,903 

Total                                   59,370                           62,573                         60,903 

NOTE : 11

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

TDS Payable                                   14,850                           75,588                       327,275 

Other Liabilities                                 136,656                         133,776                       129,456 

Total                                 151,506                         209,364                       456,731 

NOTE : 12

PROVISIONS

Contingent Provision  agt Advances                                   83,100                           77,419                                  -   

Leave Salary Payable                                 145,658                         108,239                         82,991 

Total                                 228,758                         185,658                         82,991 

NOTE : 13

EQUITY

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED:

20,00,000 (  20,00,000 )Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each                           20,000,000                   20,000,000                 20,000,000 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP :

18,00,000 (  18,00,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each                           18,000,000                   18,000,000                  18,000,000 

                          18,000,000                   18,000,000                 18,000,000 

A )Terms/ Rights Attached to Equity Shares:

i) The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,

after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

B) Reconciliation of Oustanding Shares:

Particulars No. of shares as on 

31st March 2019

No. of shares as on 

31st March 2018

No. of shares as on 

31st March 2017

Opening as on 1st April                              1,800,000                     1,800,000                    1,400,000 

Addition During The Year                                            -                         400,000 

                            1,800,000                     1,800,000                    1,800,000 

C) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares of the Company:-

Name of the Shareholder No. of shares as on 

31st March 2019

No. of shares as on 

31st March 2018

No. of shares as on 

31st March 2017

FULIDEVI SARAF FAMILY TRUST 197,000 197,000 197,000

REMI SALES & ENGG. LTD. 220,200 220,200 220,200

K K FINCORP LTD 276,450 276,450 276,450

REMI SECURITIES LTD. 270,350 270,350 270,350

DALEEP DHALUMAL JATWANI 400,000 400,000 400,000

Closing as on 31st March

TOTAL



As on 31-3-2019 As on 31-3-2018 As on 31-3-2017

Amount( ` ) Amount( ` ) Amount( ` )

NOTE : 14

OTHER EQUITY

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

a) Securities Premium Reserve : -

   -  Balance as per last Balance Sheet                            54,000,000                    54,000,000                  18,000,000 

  -  Add: Received during the year                                             -                                       -                    36,000,000 

                           54,000,000                    54,000,000                  54,000,000 

b) Capital Reserve

      Balance as per last Balance Sheet                                  240,740                         240,740                        240,740 

                                 240,740                         240,740                        240,740 

c)  Special Reserve under section 45C of the RBI 

  -  Balance as per Last Balance Sheet                            27,000,000                    27,000,000                  27,000,000 

  -  Add: Transferred from surplus balance in statement of profit &                              1,000,000                                     -                                     -   

                           28,000,000                    27,000,000                  27,000,000 

d) Surplus : -

 - Opening Balance                          119,463,338                 101,605,281                  91,946,300 

 - Add: Profit / ( Loss ) for the period                              5,111,330                    16,988,062                    2,540,008 

 - Add: Other Comprehensive Income                              1,253,614                         869,995                    7,118,973 

 - Less: Appropriations

              Transferred to General reserve                              1,000,000                                     -                                     -   

                         124,828,282                 119,463,338                101,605,281 

                         207,069,022                 200,704,078                182,846,021 

NOTE : 15

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries , Wages & Bonus                              1,336,437                      1,293,486 

Staf Welfare Exp                                          638                                 683 

                             1,337,075                      1,294,169 

NOTE : 16

OTHER EXPENSES

Rent                                  159,300                         153,225 

Fee,Rates Taxes                                      6,800                              7,900 

Listing Fees & Processing Fees to BSE                                  295,000                         287,500 

Legal & Prof. Fees                                  189,030                            43,500 

Membership & Subscription                                    23,600                            23,450 

Depository Charges                                    32,638                            23,882 

S.T.T.                                      8,966                            18,250 

Future / Option Segments Loss                                             -                        3,089,471 

Contingent Provision against advances                                      5,681                            77,419 

Commission & Brokrage Paid                                             -                              18,480 

Payment to Auditors

         Audit Fees                                    60,000                            59,000 

         Other Services ( Certification Fees )                                      9,680                              5,000 

Miscellaneous Expenditure                                  239,200                         111,351 

Total                              1,029,895                      3,918,428 

Total Reserves and Surplus

Closing Balance

Closing Balance

Net surplus in the statement of Profit & Loss



19. The company does not have any outstanding amount payable to Micro, Small and   
Medium Enterprises as specified in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. 

 
 
20 Provisions of the Payment of the Gratuity Act, ESIC and the Employees‟ Provident 

Funds Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
 
21. The Significant component and classification of deferred tax assets and liabilities on        

account of timing differences are: - 
 
 

 
 

As at 
31-3-2019 

As at 
31-3-2018 

Deferred Tax Asset  ( ` ) ( ` ) 

On account of Employee Benefits  40,522 28,142 

On account of Bmeiness Loss 15,12,832 15,12,832 

On Account Long Term Capital Loss 68,73,525 78,53,759 

Net Deferred Tax Asset 84,26,879 93,94,733 

 
 
22. Earning per Share 

  As at 
31-03-2019 

As at 
31-03-2018 

a. Iighted average number of equity share of Rs.10/- each   

 i)   No. of shares at the beginning of the year 18,00,000 18,00,000 

 ii)  No. of shares at the end of the year 18,00,000 18,00,000 

 iii) Iighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the year. 

18,00,000 18,00,000 

b. Net profit / (loss) after tax available for equity 
Shareholders 

51,11,330 1,69,88,062 

c. Basic earnings from continuing operations for equity 
share (in Rs.) 

2.84 9.44 

d. Diluted earnings from continuing operations for equity 
share (in Rs.) 

2.84 9.44 

 
 
 
23. Related parties disclosures: 

 A)   Key Management Personnel 

   1)   Mr.Mahabir J.Sharma   - Executive Director cum CFO 

                                  ( ` ) 
  31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

 Salary &  Allowances   9,58,188 9,58,188 

 

 

 

 



 

B)  Non-Executive  Directors 

                                  ( ` ) 
  31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

 Reimbursement  of Conveyance Exp. 23,100 15,000 

 

 

C.Associate Companies: - 

Remi Securities Limited, Remi Finance & Investment Private Limited, Rajendra 
Finance Private Limited, ,Remi Elektrotechnik Ltd., Remi Edelstahl Tubulars Ltd. 
 

 
 

 31-03-2019 
( ` ) 

31-03-2018 
( ` ) 

a) Interest Received 2,36,495 1,37,351 

b) Interest Paid 4,334 43,311 

c) Loan Given 1,20,25,000 1,74,80,000 

d) Loan Received 8,00,000 28,00,000 

e) Loan outstanding Receivable / Payable at 
the year end  

NIL NIL 

 
 

 
24 Transitional Provision 

The carrying amount of noncurrent investment in the associate companies is 
increased by Rs. 7,92,13,928/- following the transitional provision of AS23 
“Accounting for Investments in Associates‟ and the corresponding adjustment is 
made in the retained earnings in the consolidated financial statements. 



 

25. Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations      

 

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences 
arising from the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS 101: 

 

 
(i) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at 1st April, 2017 (Transition Date); 

  

 
(ii) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2018; 

   

 
(iii) Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2018; 

 
(iv) Reconciliation of Total Equity as at 1st April, 2017 and as at 31st March, 2018; 

 

 

(v) Adjustments to Cash Flow Statements as at 31st March, 2018 
  

            The presentation requirements under previous GAAP differs from Ind AS, and hence, previous 
GAAP information has been regrouped for ease of reconciliation with Ind AS. The re-grouped 
previous GAAP information is derived from the Financial Statements of the Company 
prepared in accordance with previous GAAP. 

(i) & (ii) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at 1st April, 2018 (Transition Date) and 31st March, 2017: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Notes 

As at 31st March, 2018 
(End of the last period presented under 

previous GAAP) 

As at 1st April, 2017 
(Date of transition) 

Previous 
GAAP 

Effects 
of 

transition 
to Ind 

AS 

Amount as 
per Ind AS 

balance 
sheet 

Previous 
GAAP 

Effects 
of 

transition 
to Ind 

AS 

Amount as 
per Ind AS 

balance 
sheet 

(1) Financial assets        

 (a) Cash and cash equivalents   128429  128429 129989  129989 

 (b) Bank Balance   636466  636466 874822  874822 

 (c) Receivable  2129955  2129955 2074146  2074146 

 (d) Loans  30967561  30967561 3967330  3967330 

 (e ) Other Financial Assets  4733129  4733129 5088807  5088807 

  Total Financial assets  38595540  38595540 12135094  12135094 

           

(2) Non Financial Assets        

 (a) Deferred Tax Assets  9394733  9394733 8912853  8912853 

 (b) Other Non Currents Investment  163114332 7988968 171103300 173211626 7118973 180330599 

 (c) Loang Term Loans & Advance  68100  68100 68100  68100 

 (d) Other current assets  -      

  Total current assets  172577165 7988968 180566133 182192579 7118973 189311552 

           

   Total Assets  211172705 7988968 219161673 194327673 7118973 201446646 
 

  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES        

 Equity         

 (a) Equity Share capital  18000000  18000000 18000000  18000000 

 (b) Other Equity  192715110 7988968 200704078 175727048 7118973 182846021 

   Total equity  210715110 7988968 218704078 193727048 7118973 200846021 

           

 Liabilities         

(1) Financial liabilities        

 (a) Financial Liabilities        

  (i) Borrowings        

  (ii) Trade Payables  62573  62573 60903  60903 

  (iii) Other financial liabilities 
(other than those specified in 

       

   item (b), to be specified)        

 (b) Provisions        

 (c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)        

 (d) Other non-current liabilities  209364  209364 456731  456731 

 Total non current liabilities  271937  271937 517634  517634  

           

           

(2) Current liabilities         

 (a) Financial Liabilities        

  (i) Borrowings        

  (ii) Trade payables        

  (iii) Other financial liabilities        

 (b) Other current liabilities        

 (c) Provisions  185658  185658 82991  82991 

 (d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)        

 Total current liabilities  185658  185658 82991  82991  

           

 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  211172705  219161673 194327673  201446646  

 



(iii) Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2018: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Notes Previous GAAP 
Effects of 

transition to 
Ind AS 

Amount as per 
Ind AS 
SOP&L 

I Revenue From Operations  4298874  4298874 

II Other Income  128959  128959 

III Total Income (I+II)    4327833  4327833 

IV EXPENSES          

  (1) Cost of materials consumed      

  (2) Purchase of Stock in Trade     

  (3) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade 
and work-in-progress 

     

  (4) Excise Duty       

  (5) Employee benefits expense    1294169  1294169 

  (6) Finance costs    664189  664189 

  (7) Depreciation and amortization expense       

  (8) Other expenses    3918428  3918428 

  Total expenses (IV)    5876786  5876786 

V Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV)   (1548953)  (1548953) 

V Tax expense:          

VI (1) Current tax    10110  10110 

  (2) Deferred tax    (481880)  (481880) 

  (3) Tax in respect of Earlier Years       

        (491990)  (491990) 

IX Profit for the year (V-VI)    (1056963)  (1056963) 

X Share profit of Associate Companies  18045025  18045025 

   16988062  16988062 

XI Other Comprehensive Income     869995 869995 

  Items that will  be reclassified to profit or loss          

XII   Total comprehensive income for the year ( VII + VIII )   16988062 869995 17858057 

 
Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income: 

Particulars  For the year ended 
31st March, 2018 

(Audited) 

Net Profit under Previous Indian GAAP 
  

 16988062 

 Fair valuation (gain)/loss on financial assets  - 
 Tax impact due to above adjustment  - 
 Tax adjustment to Profit / (Loss)  - 
Net profit under Ind AS before other comprehensive income   
Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes)   869995 
Tax impact due to above adjustment   
Total Comprehensive income as per Ind AS  17858057 

 
Notes to First time adoption : 
 

1. Security Deposits : 
Under the previous IGAAP interest free security deposits (that are refundable in cash 
on completion of the lease term) are recorded at transaction price. Under Ind AS all 
financial assets are required to be recognized at fair value. Accordingly the company 
has fair valued security deposits and the difference between the fair value and 
transaction value of the Security deposit has been recognized as prepaid rent. 
 

2. Employee Benefit Cost : 
Under Ind AS the actuarial gains and losses form part of the remeasurement of the 
net defined benefit Liability / Assets and is recognized in other comprehensive 
income. Under IGAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognized in profit or loss. 
Consequently, the deferred tax effect of the same has also been recognized in other 
comprehensive income under Ind AS insteed of profit or loss. 

 
3. Fair Valuation of Investment : 

Under IGAAP investment in equity / other instruments were classified into long term 
and current investments. Long term investments were carried at cost less provision, 
other than temporary in nature. Current investments were carried at lower of cost as 
fair value. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value 
either through other comprehensive income or through profit and loss. The company 
has opted to fair value of these investments through other comprehensive income. 
 
 
 



 
4. Deferred Taxes: 

Under previous GAAP, deferred taxes were recognized based on profit and loss 
approach i.e. tax impact on difference between the accounting income and taxable 
income. Under Ind AS deferred tax is recognized by following Balance Sheet 
approach i.e. tax impact on temporary difference between the carrying value of 
assets and liabilities in the books and their respective tax base. Also deferred tax has 
been recognized on the adjustments made on transition to Ind AS. 
 

5. Other Equity: 
Adjustments to retained earnings and other comprehensive income have been made 
in accordance with Ind AS, for the above mentioned items. 
 

6. Optional Exemption availed:  
 

a) Deemed Cost 
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognized in the financial statement 
as at 31.03.2017 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed 
cost as at the transition date. 

 
b) Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying amount of investment as  
recognized in the financial statement as at 31.03.2017 measured as per the previous 
GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the transition date. 
 

7. Applicable Mandatory Exceptions 
 

a) Estimates 
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS 
shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with 
previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies) Ind 
AS estimates as at 1st April, 2017 are consistent with the estimates as at the same 
date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made estimates for 
following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not 
required under previous GAAP. 

(i) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model. 
 

b) Depreciation of financial assets and financial liabilities 
Ind AS 101 requires first time adopter to apply the derecognition provisions of Ind AS 
109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind 
AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows the first time adopter to apply the de-recognition   
requirement in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from the date to the entities choosing, 
provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and 
financial liabilities to de-recognized as a result of past transactions was obtained at 
the time of initially accounting for those transactions. The Company has elected to 
apply the de-recognition provision of Ind AS 109 perceptively from the date of 
transition to Ind AS.     
 

c) Classification and measurement of financial assets 
As required under Ind AS 101 the Company has assessed the classification and 
measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that 
exist at the date of transition Ind AS. Where practicable, measurement of financial 
assets accounted at amortized cost has been done retrospectively.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
d) Impairment of financial assets 

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to apply the Ind AS requirements retrospectively if it is 
practicable, without undue cost and effort to determine the credit risk that debt 
financial instruments where initially recognized.  The Company has measured 
impairment losses on financial assets as on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2017 in 
view of Cost and effort.   

 
SIGNATURE TO NOTES 1 TO 25 
 

 
AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ANNEXED 

For YATIN KUMAR SHAH 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

 
Sd/- 

 

        FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
 
 

Sd/- 

YATIN KUMAR SHAH M.P.SHARMA NIRMAL MURARKA 

PROPRITOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR 

Membership Number 159796 DIN:00175393 DIN:00192744 

 
 

  Sd/- 

PLACE :  MUMBAI (NIRMAL TIWARI) 

DATED :  29TH MAY, 2019 COMPANY SECRETARY 

 



Form AOC-I-Part “B”: Associates  – F.Y 2018-19 
 (Statement pursuant to  Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act ,2013 related to 

Associate Companies  

Bajrang Finance Limited  

S.r 

No. 

Name of Associates Vayudoot Trading 

Limited 

Remi Fans 

Limited 

Highpower 

Mercantile 

Limited 

1  Latest audited Balance 

Sheet Date 

31
st
 March , 2019 31

st
 March , 2019 31

st
 March , 

2019 

2 Date on which the 

Associate was 

associated or acquired. 

12.07.2002 27.08.2013 12.07.2002 

3 Shares of Associate held 

by the company on the 

year end 

   

i No.(Number of Shares) 23500 56840 23500 

ii Amount of Investment 

in Associates  

Rs.2.51 Lakhs  Rs.7.39Lakhs Rs.2.35Lakhs 

 Extend of Holding % 23.50 % 22.38 % 23.50 % 

4 Description of how 

there is significant 

influence 

Control of  20 % and 

more of total share 

capital 

Control of at 

least 20 % of 

total share capital 

Control of 

atleast 20 % 

of total share 

capital 

5 Reason why the 

associate  is not 

consolidated 

Not applicable Not applicable Not 

applicable 

6 Networth attributable to 

Shareholding as per 

latest audited Balance 

sheet 

Rs 74.00 Lakhs Rs 133.81 Lakhs  Rs 82.16 

Lakhs 

7 Profit / Loss for the year    

i Considered in 

Consolidation 

Rs.1.93 Lakhs 

  

Rs.10.72 Lakhs Rs.1.48 Lakhs 

ii Not Considered in 

Consolidation 

Not applicable Not applicable Not 

applicable 
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Form AOC-I-Part “B”: Associates  – F.Y 2018-19 
 (Statement pursuant to  Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act ,2013 related to 

Associate Companies -Bajrang Finance Limited  

S.r 

No. 

Name of Associates Rajendra Finance 

Private Limited 

Remi Finance 

And Investment 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Vishwakarma 

Jobworks Ltd 

1  Latest audited Balance 

Sheet Date 

31
st
 March , 2019 31

st
 March , 2019 31

st
 March , 

2019 

2 Date on which the 

Associate was 

associated or acquired 

21.05.2010 21.05.2010 01.12.2014 

3 Shares of Associate held 

by the company on the 

year end 

   

i No.(Number of Shares) 203560 60000 16355 

ii Amount of Investment 

in Associates  

Rs.5.04 Lakhs Rs.5.79 Lakhs Rs.98.05 

Lakhs 

 Extend of Holding % 23.94% 27.70 % 32.71% 

4 Description of how 

there is significant 

influence 

Control of  20 % and 

more of total share 

capital 

Control of  20 % 

and more of total 

share capital 

Control of  20 

% and more of 

total share 

capital 

5 Reason why the 

associate  is not 

consolidated 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

6 Networth attributable to 

Shareholding as per 

latest audited Balance 

sheet 

Rs 165.10 Lakhs Rs 190.23 Lakhs Rs 203.18 

Lakhs 

7 Profit / Loss for the year    

i Considered in 

Consolidation 

Rs.3.41 Lakhs Rs.0.78 Lakhs  (Rs.1.08Lakhs )  

ii Not Considered in 

Consolidation 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

Contd...Page (2/2) 

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE        
  FOR   YATIN KUMAR SHAH    FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE  

 (   CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT)    BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

                     Sd/- Sd/- 

    
      (YATIN KUMAR SHAH) 

(MAHABIR J. SHARMA)    (NIRMAL MURARKA) 
    (DIN: 00175393)            (DIN: 00192744) 

         PROPRIETOR      DIRECTORS               

 ( Membership No.159796 )              

 Sd/- 

PLACE  :  MUMBAI (NIRMAL TIWARI) 

DATED :  29
TH

 MAY, 2019    COMPANY SECRETARY 
 

Notes :1. Names of associates which are yet to commence operations : Nil 

2. Names of associates which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil 



NOTE:17

Name of Associate Companies  % voting 

power

% of 

shareholdi

ng 

Share of 

profit/ (loss) 

in current 

year (Rs in 

lakhs)

Share of 

profit/ (loss) 

in previous 

year (Rs in 

lakhs)

Indian 

12.43

Remi Finance And Investment Private 

Limited
27.70 27.70 0.78 0.86

Vishwakarma Job Works Limited  32.71 32.71 -1.08 143.68

TOTAL 17.24 180.46

10.72

Vayudoot Trading Limited 23.50 23.50 1.93

22.38

The company has applied AS - 23 “Accounting for Investments in Associates” in

the Consolidated Financial Statement issued by ICAI. In accordance with the

disclosure requirement of AS - 23 relating to Associate Companies are given

below:-

The company recognise those investee entities as associates which are not

considered as subsidiary, but in which it hold directly or indirectly (through

subsidiaries) 20% or more voting power:

8.28

14.74

0.47

Highpower Mercantile Limited 23.50 23.50 1.48

Rajendra Finance Private Limited 23.94 23.94 3.41

Remi Fans Limited 22.38



NOTE:18

As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

Amount (Rs.in 

lakhs)

As % of 

consolidated 

profit or Loss

Amount (Rs.in 

lakhs)

1 2 3 4 5

Parent

Bajrang Finance 

Limited 
59.42 1337.43 66.27 33.87

Associates                            

( Investment as per 

equity method)

   

Indian    

Remi Finance And 

Investment Private Limited
8.45 190.23 1.53 0.78

Vishwakarma Job Works 

Limited  
11.91 267.96 -2.11 -1.08

3.41

 100.00 2250.69 100.00

Rajendra Finance Private 

Limited
7.34 165.10 6.67

51.11

Remi Fans Limited 5.95 133.81 20.97 10.72

Highpower Mercantile 

Limited
3.65 82.16 2.90 1.48

Additional information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act , 2013, of 

Companies Consolidated as Associates.

Name of enitity
Net Assets, i.e .,total  assets 

minus total liabilities
Share in profit  or loss

Vayudoot Trading Limited 3.29 74.00 3.78 1.93
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Name & Address of the Registered Shareholder: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DPID/Client ID/ Folio No :  

No. of Shares Held :  

 

Sub: Process and Manner for Availing Remote E-Voting Facility 

Pursuant to provision of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility to the 
members to cast their votes electronically as an alternative to participation at the Annual General Meeting to be 
held on Friday, the 27

th
 September, 2019, at 11.00 A.M. The Company has engaged the services of National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to provide e-voting facilities. The e-voting facility is available at the link 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

The electronic voting particulars are set out below: 

EVEN 
(E-voting Event Number) 

User ID Password/ PIN 

111419   

The e-voting facility will be available during the following Remote E-voting period; 

Commencement of e-voting End of e-voting 

From 9.00 a.m. of 23
rd

 September, 2019 Upto 5 p.m. of 26
th

 September, 2019 

Please read the instructions printed overleaf before exercising the votes. 

These details and instructions form integral part of the Notice for the Annual General Meeting to be held on 
Friday, the 27

th
 September, 2019, at 11.00 A.M. 

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the name of the Member on the 
cut-off date, i.e. 20

th
 September, 2019. 

http://www.remigroup.com,/
mailto:rppm_igrd@remigroup.com,
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com./


 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 

Members are requested to follow the instructions below to cast their vote through Remote e-voting: 
 
(a)  User ID and Password for e-voting is provided in the table on the face of this annexure to the Notice of 

Annual General Meeting (AGM). Please note that the Password is an Initial Password. 
 
(b)  Launch and internet browser by typing in the URL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com 
 
(c) Click on “Shareholder - Login. 
 
(d) put  „User ID‟ and Password‟ as initial password/PIN as noted in step (a) above and click „Login‟ 
 
(e) If you are logging in for the first time, Password Change Menu appears. Change the Password of your 

choice with minimum 8 digits/ characters or a combination thereof. Please note the new Password for all 
the future e-voting cycles offered on NSDL e-voting Platform. It is strongly recommended not to share 
your Password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your Password confidential. 

 
(f) Home page of “Remote e-voting” opens. Click on “Remote e-voting”: Active Voting Cycles. 
 
(g) Select “EVEN (E-Voting Event Number)” of BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED.  
 
(h) Now you are ready for “e-voting” as “Cast Vote” Page opens. 
 
(i) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

Upon confirmation, the message „Vote cast successfully‟ will be displayed. Kindly note that vote once cast 
cannot be modified. 

 
(j) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority Letter, along with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorised signatory(ies) who are authorised to vote, to the Scrutinizer by an e-mail 
at bajscrutinizer@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 
(k) Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, he/she shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently. 
 
(l) In case of any queries you may refer the frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for members and e-voting 

user manual for members available at the “downloads” section of https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or 
contact NSDL by email at evoting@nsdl.co.in or toll free no. 1800-222-990. 

Registered & Corporate Office: 

BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED  
Plot No.11, Cama Industrial Estate, 
Goregaon (East)  Mumbai – 400 063    
Ph. No.022-4058 9888 
Fax No.022-2685 2335 
Email: baj_igrd@remigroup.com  

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 
Unit: BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 
1

st
 Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,  

Opp. Vasant Oasis Makwana Road,  
Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai- 400059,  
Tel: 022 62638200 Fax : 022 62638299 
Email: investor@bigshareonline.com 

 

mailto:scrutinizer@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


BAJRANG FINANCE LIMITED 
Regd. Office: Plot No.11, Cama Industrial Estate, Goregaon(E), Mumbai- 400 063 

CIN: L65990MH1971PLC015344, Web.: www.remigroup.com, Email: baj_igrd@remigroup.com,  
Ph.: 022-40589888, Fax: 022- 26852335 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall) 

DPID No.  Name & Address of the Registered Shareholder 

Client ID No./Folio No.   

No. of Shares Held  

(To be filled in if the Proxy attends instead of the Member/s) 

I hereby record my presence at the 47
TH

 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING to be held at the Company’s Registered 
Office on Friday, the 27

th
 September, 2019, at 11.00 A.M. 

Note: Please complete this and signed at the time of handing over this slip. 
Member’s/ Proxy’s Signature 

Form No. MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the member(s) :  

Registered address :  

E-mail Id :  

Folio No/ Client Id :  DP ID  
 
I/We, being the member (s) of __________________shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

 

1. Name :  

 Address :  

 E-mail Id :  Signature: , or failing him 

2. Name :  

 Address :  

 E-mail Id :  Signature:  

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 47
th

 Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 27

th
 September, 2019, at 11.00 A.M. at the Company’s 

Registered Office, Plot No.11, Cama Industrial Estate, Goregaon(E), Mumbai - 400 063 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolutions 

No. Description 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements including audited consolidated financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, together with the reports of 
the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

2. To reappoint Shri Nirmal Murarka (DIN: 00192744) as Director, who retires by rotation. 

3. To approve re-appointment of Shri Ramkrishana Shriya (DIN:00027388),  as an Independent Director 
of the Company. 

4. To approve re-appointment of Smt. Anita Bhartiya (DIN:01579145),  as an Independent Director of 
the Company. 

Signed this _________day of  _________ _________ 2019. 

Signature of 
shareholder 

:  
Signature of Proxy 

holder(s) 
: 

 

Affix Re.1/- 
Revenue 
Stamp &    

(sign across) 

Note:  This form of proxy in order to be effective, should be duly completed, signed, stamped and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

http://www.remigroup.com,/
mailto:rppm_igrd@remigroup.com,


Western Express 
HighwayGoregaon Station (E)

remi House

Route Map
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